Town of Reading
Meeting Posting with Agenda

Select Board

Date; 2025-11-04 Time: 7:00 PM

Building: Reading Town Hall Location: Select Board Meeting Room
Address: 16 Lowell Street Agenda:

Purpose: General Business

Meeting Called By: Madeleine Baptiste on behalf of Chair Chris Haley

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of
operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an
adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be
discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda.

All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted.

Topics of Discussion:

*Public Comment is permitted after each Agenda ltem limited to that Item*

Zoom Option: PAGE

Join Zoom Meeting
hit s A usOemee b ronm s/l B2 755 21 2 741

Meeting ID: 827 5521 2741

Dial by your location
*++7 646 558 8656 US (New York)
++1 646 518 9805 US (New York)

7:00 | Pledge of Allegiance

Overview of Meeting

7:05 | Public Comment (For any items not included on the agenda)

7:15 | Town Manager Report

7:20 | Community Spotlight

7:25 | Public Hearing: Discuss and Vote Fiscal Year 26 Tax Classification 5
Discuss and Vote on Mystic Regional Emergency Planning At

7:55 : . 35
Committee Proclamation
Discuss and Vote on Proclamation for Special Education Parent

8:00 36

Advisory Committee (SEPAC) Awareness Month

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting.

Page | 1



Town of Reading
Meeting Posting with Agenda

Public Hearing: Discuss and Vote on Transfer of Annual Wine and Malt
8:05 | Liquor License for Bangkok Spice LLC d/b/a Bangkok Spice, Located at | 38
76 Haven Street

Discuss and Potential Vote on Procurement Options for the Pleasant

: Street Center 77
8:35 Discuss and Vote on Amendment to Select Board Policy Section 130
: 3.2.2.14: Hours of Operation (Permitted Sale of Alcohol)
8:55 | Discuss and Vote MBTA | etter 132
9:05 [ November 1%t Select Board Retreat Debrief
9:15 | Select Board Liaison Reports
9:25 | Future Agendas 133

Approve Meeting Minutes
9:30 ¢ October 16%, 2025 134
o October 21%, 2025

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting.

Page | 2



Select Board
Draft Motions

Novermber 4™, 2025

Public Hearing: RDiscuss and Vote FY26 Tax Classification

¢ Read the Hearing Notice to open the Public Hearing

¢  Move to close the Public Hearing regarding the FY26 Tax Classification

s Move that the Select Board close the hearing establishing the FY 2026 tax rate.

+ Move that the Select Board grant/not grant an open space discount for Fiscal Year
2026,

* Move that the Select Board adopt/ not adopt a residential exemption for Fiscal Year
2026.

¢ Move that the Select Board adopt a residential factor of for Fiscal Year 2026.

s Move that the Select Board grant/not grant a small commeercial exemption for Fiscat
Year 2026.

Discuss and Vote REPC Proclamation

+« Move to approve the Joint Proclamation for Mystic Regional Emergency Planning
Committee as prasented.

» [Read SEPAC Awareness Month Proclamation]
» Move that November 2025 be recognized as Special Ecucation Parent Advisory

Council Awareneass Month in the Town of Reading.



s Read the Public Hearing Notice to open the Public Hearing
« Move to close the Public Hearing regarding the Transfer of the Wine and Malt Liquor

License for Bangkok Spice.
« Move to approve the Annual Wine and Malt Restaurant Liquor License for Bangkok
Spice LLC d/b/a Bangkok Spice, Located at 76 Haven Street

« Move to direct the Town Manager to proceed with a lease of the Pleasant Street
Center.

« Move to direct the Town Manager to proceed with the sale of the Pleasant Street
Center.

»  Move to amend Section 3.2.2.14 of the Select Board policies, as pregsented today.
Discuss and Vote MBTA Letter

« Move to approve the MBTA Letter, as presented today.

« Move to approve the meeting minutes of Gctober 16, 2025, as presented {or
amended).

s Move 10 approve the meeting minutes of Cctober 21, 2025, as presented {or
amended).



Town of Reading
To the Inhabitants of the Town of Reading:

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held in accordance with the
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 369 of the Acts of 1982 on the issue of
determining a residential factor in assessing the percentage of tax burden to be borne by
each class of property for Fiscal Year 2026. The hearing will be held on Tuesday,
November 4, 2025, at 7.00 p.m. in the Select Board Meeting Room at Town Hall, 16
Lowell Street, Reading, MA and remotely on Zoom. The five classes of property
involved are residential, open space, commercial, industrial and personal property.

A copy of the proposed document regarding this topic will be available i the
Select Board packet on the website at www.readingma.gov.

All interested parties are invited to attend the hearing, or may submit their

comments in writing or by email to townmanager(@readingma.gov.

By order of
Matthew A. Kraunelis, Esq
Town Manager



FY 2026 Classification

Presented by the
Reading Board of Assessors

October 21, 2025



uondwax3
leloJawwio |jlews e Jo bunuels

uondwax3 |enuapisay e jo bunuelo
aoedg uadQ J0} JUNOISI(] B JO UoNos|es

10)oe 4 [BlJUSpPISaY WNWIUI B JO UoN03|eS

qs Ag suonoy palinbay



1S9 20'L L$ ©9 pinom ajey xe] 8|buls
c0'LL$=000L X20LL00=
//8'9€G'GLZ'88 / 168851 16$ S! AnaT xe |
¥1 =000l x(8njeA |ejo] / AreT xe])

‘2)lel xe} a|buis e p|alA pjnom | JO 4N Uy
‘2)el xe} }i|ds

1ybiIs e pajdope sey buipeay ‘Ajjuaday

10)oe 4 [BnuapIsay WNWIUIA]



'dID 103 TOTTTS pue [BLIUSPISAL L7 [ 1§ 9 P[NOM SSJBI XE) ST} YIYS B INOYIM  »

‘Ajoanoadsal Z1°Z1$ 2 00°T1$ 99 P[NOM S2JBI XE) 31 O JO YIYS BIY o

"JJIYS X€) B JnoyiiM

L¥$ s11500 a3e10AR YL, "00'T JO YIYs B 18 7O 1§ 2q P[NOM d1eI J1D) 3Y) PUe LO'TT§
3q p[noMm 21E1 XB] [BIIUIPISAI O] PUB 960 Q[ 1S SUIYIYS 9 P[NOM IM 0400 IV o

‘Jel1a1 Xe) oy 10] Aed 01 senredord
JO SSE[O [eNUOPISII O} UM POYJIYS 0q SI 9609 H$ JO JUNOWE JIPIID [B]0) O]

"0%001 ST Iunoury uonduaxjuaim) oyl "960°91+$
ISI0TURS payjifen() AQ PAAISOAY SHPAI) XB ], dWOdU] J9yBaIy 1IMOII)) JO Junowy [Blo

[OIS Wy Uljy 670°7$ MWy 3aY 0€L'TS Wy Xey
‘peaocidde azom sio1uag ¢O7 ‘uonduwexs a1 107 parjdde siotag /17

S[I®I9(] JIPo1)) JodjBadg] JINDII ) J0IUIG SUIpPBIY



133

P01 0011 $65C°L6 CLYe660 oL 1
r8E0LS 100 11 [BOCL £6 SCIV660 60°1
£6£°01$ 011 0C8L L6 LLLYG6 (O Q0°T
ANE 011 133 4 2R3 [0EFS66 0 L0
€0V 01 011 |9V0G t6 £80966°0 00'T
AN 011 16695°£6 [9£L966°0 o'
T 013 O 11 CLT9L6 [68LLO66 0 $0°1
1€V 0TS SOTI P889 L6 08660 O
[€F 018 SOTI1 LO6VL t6 7698660 701
77 01S 011 0T18°t6 |LV£666 0 10T
ST 01$ LOT1 tCL8 E6 0000 I I

"S[RAIOIUL 1JTYS SNOLIBA
Je sjunowe [[1q Xe) a8eIaAe 9707 A paledionue oy} SaZLIBWIUNS MO]oq 3[qel 37 [

000°FF6$ ST 9707 A 10] anfea swioy Ajiwae] o[3uls 98eIdAR O .




CSTO1S
1977018

6901860
860

087°01$ 089€86°0

986¥86°0

R0€°01S 6 1679860

1L

%

01$ LO6SLBGO

-

OFE0T

g

9SE0TS
LEOIS

$

,Mwm_‘wmm 618766°C 1’1

TIHHNVI 9T Isd



F308°06
806

01t606 £998960

eSOl

I9LT'16 BLTLILEO

SO8LL
’ _ eren
£ET01S v116'16 TIL6L6°0

TIYE XVIL 9L I8 JIVHXVLSHH JATHS d1)




£

%10T LLEQT «66°01 E61°FP6 965'0 00.°868°LTT9 9Z0T
YA ZL1'01 611 001°¢68 €659 0S6'891°838°S $TOT
%50y 890701 TLTT 960°658 7659 006 191°¢90°S ¥T0Z
%EL'E 91L'6 19721 FIE0LL 0659 009°SLE9LD'S €202
2%£0°¢ 99¢°6 €€ 9¥9°T0L ¥LS'D 00896 1°619F T0T
%I6'E 060°6 €8¢l i EAS 9959 BOCTIGSICY 1207
%bl'€ 8VL'8 96°¢1 FOI'LT9 99¢'g GOV'988LIT'Y 0202
%ST'6 6L7'8 T 4 89S 165 955’9 00v'886°'L63°¢ 6107
2%L0¢ 194°4 LEET €08°65¢ 6VE9 000°€S1°999°¢ 8102
%ECE 06Y'L Ot LES'EES Fre'o 00V POV 16Y'C L10Z
%319 /¥TL £ 41 00< 66 6550 001 $90'997°E 910z
26¥8C 3789 IL¥1 0ST'vor 8I$'9 005°€99°0£0°¢C $10T
%941 §i5%9 ¥L ¥l 001 obF FIs'o 00TC65016T ¥102
%897 65Y°9 yo 1 00€°TEY 915’9 00L°519°91R°C €102
%96'T 0679 STl 00< vt F1$9 009°SLE'S68T T1oz
%I9'T 601°9 08¢l CSO'TH 30<'9 005°96L°033°T 10z
%T9'1 £S6°C CLET GE6'TEY $0<9 G08°0L7°918°C 0102
%P7 368°¢C 1T¢l QP EPY 1059 009°L8.°788°C 600T
%ETT 969°S 9Tl 990°TCY 0619 006606 €E6C 8007
m._m XEL IBA 8V | Poarg
adueyg) Apure g ey xe], fpuey | weg SOMIEA PISSISSY | JEAX [BISLY
ELEERCE | JdUIg [ENUIpIay Apure ajdulg
Ay fuIg Aduls

jassaxd o1 gpnz woI A101SIY Jj1q Xe] AJIUR] S[3ms adeiaay




¥

A119d01 [R10I0WWO)) 98RIDAY ) 0 OYIZ

QWIOH A[Twie,] 3[3UIS d5RIDAY Y1 01 OYHZ

o1ey XB S 9707 Ad 93 03 O YAZ SPPE S L

0447
S1 uoIsn[oXg 199(1 9707 Ad Y3 JO Junoury [elo].

HLON HLVYH XV.L 9707 AAd



(%19°v-) L9V Ov6$ £12'z66% 9l 3les "bay

GE 9l 199 748 4 Joxiep uo sheg
Go6l Ll Aaoy ssjeg
| £A4 A | A

JU0) SHLON ALVYH XV.L 970C Ad



G

0SS +TS AN vOrL O 7LVE66°0 OL'T
LEETLS 10°¢1 6199 CZIV660 60T
SURZA 106711 08199 LLLVG6 0 20°1
]8°€TS 6L 11 19669 EPSE6°0 /01
6S9°€TS 29°11 FCoT 9 £209660 90"
9Etr €CS LS 1T IvEy o 0€.966°0 O°T
£1T°€TS Pt Il 8TLE9 68€166°0 YOl
166°TCS CE Tl SIIED 170R66°0 Ol
8OLTCS YT 11 £0SC 9 69366 0 -
Cye TS ¢l 0681°G LPE666() 107
TTECTS 011 RLTI'O 00001 :

“sjunowe
[11q X®} [BIDI2Wod 95eIoat 9707 A pa1edionue oyl SoZLIBWWINS MO[3q 3]qR] oY [

"009°STO°TS ST 9707 A.]10] uonenjea Apadoid [erorounuod a3eIdAE 3y |



91r086°0

LOD'6TS

ZCL1860

8C0L86°0
89¢860

CEEPR60

9867860
$86°0

RRCTS

966°VT$

T XVI 9T 154

9912660

1ATHS 41D

AIVH XV1I diD




8

OrTEes 9l ‘vomﬂ.‘m F10896°0 | o'l

1)

$7T90L60 | St

[A%:1: 8
LI9L'8

6¥ETES
9TICES
€06°1€%

¢

BSHIES 10v9'8

$
Z10°1£S

IT1°0£S
2628

9°6Z$

66V1'8

L

AIVE XV1dL) FAIHS d1)

FIIE XV 9T 181




&

[09L°018 AN rOVL9 ZLYE€66°0 01’1
299°01% 10°¢1 C6L9°9 SZIP660 60'1
FO501$ 06°11 08199 LLLYV660 201
LIF 0TS 6L 11 L95S9 0EPS66°0 101
[69€°019 R9°11 rCo6t 9 £20966'0 90°
ILT01S LTI IvEr9 9€1966°0 Ol
FL1IOTS oY 11 8TLED 68€L66°0 o
[9LO01S CEII SIIED 1708660 01
83L66% v 11 €0sC9 698660 70’1
06819 LYVE66670 101
8LTL'O 00001 I

“SJUNOWE [[Iq

XE] [BIDISWIUIOD UBIPAW 9707 A paiedonue oy) SOZLIBWILINS MO[aq 2[qe] oY [

"OSLELBR]S ST 9707 A 10} uonenjea Alrodoad jerorowuod usipow oy |



m “””.,,ww
0

618266

S19°TIS

0SZ886'0
- Z06886D
CCC686°0
RO

Y11

TSOTIS

LSSOIS | 9917660
09L0TS o

THY XVI YT 189 AIVAXVILAID LATHS 410



89SV1$

n.wmmnm o

«mﬁtma

8SFBL60

018°C1S

wmmmhm @

THH XVI 97 1S4 EALSIDGANIN

LATHS 41D



‘ST0C A WO TT°T JO [EAI)UL JJIYS QWIES SOWINSSY 9707 AH

$S6°01$ 0SL‘L88$ €TTIS 18!

PEO‘0LS 000°T6LS L9TIS 1

LATHS

SUXVL  HOIVANVIGIN HLVIXVL d1D
9TAH A STAA

NOSIIVAdINOD XVL 'TVIDYIININOO NVIAAIN

9¢0¢
ST0C

Ad



M00S

NOT$ 2a0qe sanradoay £
JNOTS 03 INT WoJj §7 NZS 03 NT$ Woyj f
TS - M00S$ Wwo.y op M00s$ > sonaadoad go
9707 AJ 10] usopyeaag anje A ApadoaJ jenasmumwo)

0l
0c
0t
oy
05
09

0L



¥

%3¥ 1~ bLLPT | £TTI £59°CT0TS £6l 00b°0L0°E8E | 189 970T
%S| LYIsT | L9Tl 008°F86°18 €61 00t 0L0°€8E $T0T
%St TLLFT | +£7T1 [CCLI6TTS <6l 00 1€1°89¢€ PE0T
%1 t- LPOET | €87TH PETEFRTS ¥61 000'89S°L5E 20l
25890 LIFVT | sS¢€t 000°708°18 €61 00L°TT6 LYE 7Tt
%L1°0- ISTYT | 90vI SIS ICLTS 061 009°SF1 LTS 10T
%50t LSTPT | 1TV ST0°L0L° 18 6l 005 LYL LTE 070¢
29¢£°9 oF'eT | 0TFI ¥90°8F9° 1% +61 00¥'STL61E 610
20,000 00T | Teel 290°08S° 1S 10C 00V T6S LIE 810C
9001 SPe'1Z | vOvl 000°£9¢°1% 861 001°0LY 60F L10C
2681 §99°1T | ISHI 001°¢6t 1§ L61 00S°0¥ 1 +6T 9102
%88t AN K 1L+l 00L°6FF 1S 961 008 T+ 1+8T ¢10C
Yol & [ET1T | 9L¥1 00L°6EY' 1S 361 00L'890°C8T ¥I10C
%81 LTSTT | t6'FI 006°L0S°1$ 661 00¥°£90°00€ €107
%St T 11T | STl TTLE9S 18 50¢ CSO 18t '0CE c10¢C
%666 81 PIOIT 8¢l 807°99<°1% ¥0C 9L£°905°61¢ T10C
YL L PO1'81 | SLE1 FSO1TE 1S 50T €E0'918°0LT 0102
%0l8 S 09891 iTel 80£°0.7°1% 90¢ €9v°61679T 600¢
%9V 01 9T6'61T STl €CH €T 1S £0C 001 TRS'9¢T 3007
g xeg anfeA 12X
afumeq) | pepaowmme) | ey [epdomme]) | spatsg anfep [easig
FLCASER | sderaay X€] aderday | waie) | [BRIJORHEC)) [E10L
TUISIIA O Y()¢ WOI] ATOTSTY [[Tq XeJ [eIoISioD S0EI0AY




Sc

‘20edg uadQ zZ sse|) 40} JUNoJsIp e pajdope Jaaau sey Buipeay .

‘2oedg uadQ z sse|) se
palisseo Auadoud Joj psydope ag p|nod 9,6z 03 dn Jo uondwaxs Uy .

olignd ayi jo JuswAolus pue ieuag ay) 01 Ajuesijiubis saynguuoo

Y2IYM pue uoilupuod jeinjeu Jo uado ue ul pauiejuiew siing

awoodUul Jo uononpoad auy) J0) pIdy 10U SI pue| yoiym pue ‘uoljouysal

UoljeAlasuod Jusuewlad e Japun a|gexe} 10 ‘gL g 1o v 9 siaydeyn

JO suoIsIn0.d JBpun ajgexe) Jou SI YoIym pue palIsselo asimiaylo
10U SI Y2I1ym pue|, :se aoeds uado gz sse|d sauljap vz 29s ‘66D 1O

aoedg uadQ 10} JUno9sI(]



8¢

‘aNn|eA JaMo| Jo sswoy asoy) 0} uondwaxs ay) 4o}
Aed ||Im sawoy pan|ea Jaybly ‘ssejo sal ay) ul Ajuo si JIYs sy} soulIS

‘Wweylep) @ abpuqued
‘eas|ayn ‘uolsog buipnoul saiuunwwod ¢ Ajuo Aq padopy

‘uondwaxa ayj Joj bulAed aqg pjnom saiadoud jenuapisal ay)
jo paiy) doy ay | -uondwaxas ay} alojaq saiuadoid jenuapisal ||e 0}
Aldde pjnom siy| ‘sjel xe) |enuapisal sy} asiel pjnom siy} bundopy

‘pue| JueseA buipnioul ‘saiuadold |enuspisal
7V 10 anjen passasse abelane ayj JO %S¢ 01 dn Junowy

'PaIdN220 JBUMO aJe Jey] UMO)
ui saiuadoud jenuapisal Jo) uondwax3 jenuapisay e idope Aew gg

uondwax3 |enuspisay



xd

‘uondwaxa sy}
paldope aAey yjeamuowiwod) 8y} Ul Sa1jIUNWWOD USZop & Uey) SSo7

"JOUMO
SSauISN( 9y} JOU puE JISUMO 3]e)Sa [eal ay) 0] s20b uondwaxg

‘palljenb sassaulisng

Jayio ||e 1l Ajuo Ajllenb pinom [etanes Jo Buip(ing e ul ssauisng auQ
‘Buluiel | g juswAo|dw3

10 Jdag ay1 Aq paulad se sashojdws | uey) aiow JON
000°000°L$ ueyy sso| anjep Auedoud [ejol

‘(Auadoud jeuossad Jo |euisnpul

ON) ‘Ajuo saiuadoud |eroiawwod 1o) anjeA Auadoud 1o 9,01 01dnN

uondwax3 |eloJawwon) |[lews



IHOSE | T6TL/TLLE SPLOLS S16°068$ INIAVHY
SLT/SLTT v OC/P68 186°CS [1€°00LS WINQOM
SLT/SLT eCOU/Er 11 8Y0°8S 688°TOLS UOJTUIW[IA
SLU/SLT| OLTUSTII 608°8% 8CTOLLS PlPYaYEM
CLU/SLT L10T/6501 PER'LS 0LLGOLS Wweyauoy
00 1/081 1T¢l 991°11$ 700°SS8S | Surpey "oN
LOT/L91 66 L1/1501 CEO'TIS| €T0°CHOTS ploIuUAT]

VLIV dID / ST L anfeA

I XVIA 0001$/ | xXel, Aqruwy Arure g
LATHS 1D e XEY, | IDUIS BAY | J[FWS BAY Ayununue))

G202 Ad / senunuiio) buioqubiaN




,hmmm G
elie"
ELIESL
Str9°8E
FrEOIL
SisR9
FARN N
£667°9
SELSTH
AN
5900°S
88011
88/5EL
<8089
£99¢°9€
095E'S

LTS

2301 9 %dD

ELITEL
.hwmw.mm
£E88¥VL
.wmmm.mh
..wmwm.ww
LRITES
ER¥9'06
LO0LE6
.mmﬁwwm
00£9°56
SE6E Vo
811688
C1Zy 98
S16T°E6
LEELED
.og.w.dm
.wmmm.wm

{2101 40 %04

dID SA TTVLINAAISHY SHILINNWINOD SO0TIVA

1TV /O0ETR'TT
0/5°016'89¢I1
LEY'168'83¢°L

050'956'788ZT

FE9'88r SFe/

1/5°789°26T°L

6589SOTITY
S90°€98°7E8L
6081596y
8/0°152°586'8

QEE0ZV6TLL

ZoF 18T’ SheF

€579/ [BY8T
£9'9T/'6/£°6

DR OVS'SI00T
B9E°CSR'EEITT
899 TTE VEF'ST

(210§

00Z'EIT°80/
0/£'E6£'811
D61'E61°58L
0%¢£'196'80F
084'Z€1'50¢

£81'€55°E81

SST'88I’IOT

OFEBEN'YL

V88 15501
067 'E9F°S0T

078 TLS'8ST

0ZS'9BY 7L

0S0'689'90F
06£'v90'y/

0F6'179°562

088888l

008'£56'5Z2

680'TS6' 70T 8Y6'96E7TT'T YRI VS YR/ 'R

00/'681'eY

LG ERS'0LE'T

885'080'8¥L'C
006'962'101

GO VLETY

RETISTY
0Oy ZET'ET

QUC'ShLFEL

005'T0L’s
0I6'0E9'6T
007°8ET'SE
00057776571

P07 'GRE'6T

vy TE'E6T

000'0LE1E

000'1eI'6e

mﬁm@n& jeuosiag jeLasnpU]

1£5'595°87¢
C69'ET9 6L
£80'IBL'EEDT
9£6'50/ 'SES
QFOLT1694T
102 'ERY BTV
PZT'30T v0r
GEE'RRYYC
Liv'Iev' 18T
£16'041'86E
9/ DTG C5F
oIv'Sye’ /1R
£90'696EE5
9ITOTEEH0'E
288'058'TLY

£52'059'855

LINGoMA

695°194'8/8°01 181S3YIUIM

LEEOPL'ERY'S

610'€89°761°6
BEG'ESR'T080

YRO'EYR'06L°9

E0LTLEOVS'S
T0Z'186°8EEL

IPECE906EY

11E'E65°765°8

ETASHP IV,

9P 96" IGE T

EL0'ESE'116°ST

6/6760° TV 'R

QVECITERED

009'6¥L 01011

519°085°079FT

UOIFURLIA
HAMOLIDIBM
PIRLAREM
Angpng
WIRYSUOIS
Sujpeay
Jurpeay yHoy
| LOHA
ascIeN
piayuui]
uoSuixa
pio3u07y
uoIdINg
jucusag

uoEHY

feprowwo)  pepuepssy  Aujedpiniy

$C0C 45V XVL 4O JUVHS



SLT/SL'T 1#0T/¥S'8 | 186°CS T1£°00L$ WINGOA
0'1/08°T 09°01/60° 11 | S69°LIS 986°665 1% 12153YSUIM
SLT/SLT LLOT/SY'IT | 870°8S 688°T0LS UOITUIUIIA
SPLI/SPLT | €8CT/8911 | LS9'LS [196°6598 UMOLIDIRY
SLL/SL'T 9L 1T/ SETT | 608°8% 8CT°9LLS GEIER TN
SLT/SLT Ov'6T /€701 | VER'LS 0LLSILS WEYSUOIS
T 1/ 08°1 LOTI/6€TT | 8PIOIS ST6°068% Suipeayy
€L1/SL] SLLL/06'6 | $60°8S 0£9°L18S ISOISA]
SLT/SL'T OTYT/€TTT | 90€°618 165°8LS°TS UOIBUIXS ]
€LT/SLT LYV'ST/998 | €LLOS RLOTSLS uojsuying
001 /08T 6€11 SLL'SIS 001 819 1$ Juouag
00°T/08°1 LLOT 865° 119 8CR9LOTS uOySULIY|
Ind X&L,
dID / ST | Apureg
LOV/XVIN 0001$ J[BuIg anfep Apme] Ayjumwme))
LAIIS 41D ] a1eY XEL, “BAy J[BuULg “BAY

§Z0ZAd / @nbea xasa|ppIN



it

"POISI] 9S0Y3} JO [[I4 X®B} A[IUUR] J[SUIS ISVIIAR JSIA0] PIIY} Y]} pey sulpedy]

00'1/0ST| 0901 /6011 | SO9LIS 985°G6S° TS 121S3YOUI A
SL1/sLT| otz /senn| 608788 RCT9LLS UEREE
O 1/08T | O 1T/ vo bl | EVEIIS 0SE9IT'IS Amgpny
ICL/08T | L9TT/6cTT | SPTOIS $16°068$ supeay
6V 17081 | €691/60°11 | S0V 1IS L8P'RTO'1S O
CLT/SLT| SLLL/066| S60°8% 0£9°L18S SSOTRI
L9T/L9T| 8T°61 /9501 | SEOITS €10°S70°TS PIRIUUAT
67'1/051 | ss61 /1871 | TOV0C8 6LEL6S TS Toour ]
001/0ST| 6521/9z7¢c1 | S8561S BCO'BRY'IS PICOUO
00'1/0S1 6511 | SLLBIS 00F 8¥9°1$S Juowag]
001 /081 LLol | 868LIS 868°9L0°TS AOIFUIITY

g xeL

dID / STH | Apuweg

LOV/XVIA 0001$ a[BuIg anfep A[Ture Ajunuwuio))
LATHS d1D | /91y X8|, ‘Bay ajdug “Say
B)R([ STOT 18X [€IS1]

SIRIUNUWIHO ) d[qe.redwio) [BUIPISIY APSIR]




ooooo F*
00052
00000'T
00000'T
686671
00054
/65971
00054
00000°T
000TT'E
00000'T
£00ZET
00000'T
[ET6F'T
0000 T
8TOSE'T
875991
0006£°T
Y1981
065H9'T
629711
00000'T

000005
0000SET
0000051
0000051
0000051
0000SLT
0000521
DO0OSLT
600005 T
000005 T
000005 T
0ORO0ST
0000051
0000051
000005
000005 T
1096991
0000S2°T
0000051
947991
0000521

S69°/1
270’8
0££°01
FIETT
19001
808’8
TZe'd
123 04
1158
8y1'01
99111
¥67'a
005°01
0¥'Tl
715t
76¢°8
SEQ'TT
9156
6192
1819
£44°9

985'565 T
68870/
RS 964
E16°55/
70T'v8/
8S1'9//
BOS'AZ9
04159
8T6'90L
S16'068
700'558
7BE'578
£16°L48
L8¥'8Z0T
B0R'85/
TR Y
£10°570°T
06619/
£0E'E69
9678
B8L07€8/
0OV 8FS'T
vivoge
TZE9Z0T

O0E'651 EL0'6
OTP¥86'TED'S
005 T9LS8T'S
BIGVBLYLET
005'TT9'I07'S
000'0VE 70B'Y
L6V'96E' 156y
DOT'SEY'176'E
DEO'066'TL99
0S6'897'288°S
9EE'PHOT6HE
006°360'TET°S
UO'SYB'EBY L
002 16L'6TY' L
00T OLT'RTOY
0S0'7E0°T2S'E
002'9r1'090°Y
00Y'006'TS0'S
00L°09L°6L2'F
DO0ETO'TES Y
OOE'EPE'9ST'S
DOCVELERY'L
L69'900°CLYE
00/ '0SE°686'8

Il |||||||||||‘||||||||_

SC0T AAd SNOSTIVAINO D NAAOL ONIAvVAd

IBSBYIULM
GOROTT]LY
PICHIS3A
YINOIOWISIA
A

PeLEy

arode,
AmQsyms
HEH VTN
Amqgeaen]g
Suipeey
Fmpeay QUoN
I2AODUY LION
PuEN
HOIN
Playysiely
piaysueiy
ppyTud]
‘P
SIBATRL]
HOJR Y
nolsnImyg
jEemag
paoipag
IBADDUY



0005l pp  LODDSZ LEHE 9 EL29%L 126s viEos 8019 iroe ek oA

G000 L DOOROSE cLiey 1599°GE S59°21 98C°GHG L ¥89's G 60'H BEHAM
gOUSLE  BUOOSL: EL4LGE 28R ¥L §v0'e BREC0L B51'e 1182 CF I uoiBuLm
00000T  DOOO0GE 0RES 6 219806 054 FBG'962 0i5'9 IFEL w5 PICHSaM
00000 DOGGOS OVGO6Z o vIETE E1E'GEL Bes'c £C91 6C 9k ybroogsem
VOSVLL  BESSWLY abreez peseLL 892 196569 €58’ £z BGLL UMOLIBIEM
GERRT | ConEE T POrE Ll G/ BE R Te R i TOLYaL £E9'y L =AY sjodiess
000SSL 0ODoSi N — 609' 861912 oz’ 8212 el PIAHINRM
G6E9L DODOSL 615 GE soRv ve eee BOSECY oeE'L V0 Ll AINGSAASL
BIGEEL DODOOS: — S EHED 0SE'BELL iS¥'s vo'iZ yoF Amngpng
000SFL DOBOGI 't 11686 SRV 06 ViR, 0LEGal 62L' ¥t £Z0L WSS
00000 DODOOGE - 06168 HGR 876'90% gev'e bOTE 71 Anqemang
000LET  GO000S') £e6z0 100126 srLoE sig'oes 659 8T BELL Buipesy
00000 GODOOSE CLIT 1L — TR Z00'658 iey el a5l BUIPE HPION
100051 DOO0S'S nLEEst 0691 ¥R ¥oTE ZBESTR 6559 T8GL At JORCDUY HHON
00000 000O0G'E pioe 1t G2v6 28 cos oL E1E'Li8 L' 96°LE 9614 YN
STEFL DOOS0S'S aoey 0009'SE oV 18Y'5Z0L vzl €691 6oL 4o
SO0 DODGSIS o SEOE TE 260° Ceg'Lig 58E's SLLL 056 FSOLRA
0ON0DL DOGA0SS csrza 086706 Faty) 00885, 656 056 066 FHOGUS BN
glOBeL  ODOOUS el 6t 2208 cere e ear's S0 el PrRySUEH
01595, 109659°% 700013 oL1600 SEO' ELOCHD' 168°€ a6t ecgl spayuui
WREFL  G0000S 1962°C CEEE'06 2P 0E BIE' 16T CEC'E £5BL 1z Ty
000SL | CODOS/ T BeISTL ZLZVOR 208°61 1o Tio g | 5906 TYE £TTY uopunca
0O0SLL  0OO0GLE B0 14 c69°28 5196 DEE'192 £99' oz ez ESE]) weype(
PiOBFL  DODOOST Wiz — 6192 £0E'e62 €11'9 88t 8601 SIAALEQ
000DD'L  DDODOS: GROT'9 GLGL'ES 58961 SZOLIFL gy 68T el paouo))
OSSYY L 9IE3K9Y BELEVE LDRE'SL 1818 961 128 8e8'G Sree 686 UORED
ezozrL  DOBOSIL o 10169 €445 RIDTEL €85°9 YT a3 voibugng
0000ODT  0ODO0S pgE'S OVETVE si'et 00v'gro’L oreF &CEt 6E'11 EowRg
O0SFL D0B0GI 't (EFETE 636041 CYE PLYS6 65%'% AN YOz CES
00000 0OGO0S'E SLITG REZITE 965711 CE'RL'S DS o Zm uoibunsy
W0ISL  DOBOSI 't 0zve 11 CE0E28 BIETE LEE9T0 L 8548 ST B6YZL IBAGPIY
S JID  PSSORVUME  SEAEOLI WNEAEPD) B BRI Aggedpunigg
<0 W % 0 BRoRt  Apeejofisg obenay @mmmmﬁ,v_mumwﬁ

STOCAA SNOSTHVAINOD NAOL ONIOVIH



“Jun AAS[ 911 PUe AAd] [ENIOR ) USIMISG VUL 241

“syooford endes
10} spuny Buistel Jo asodmd ag; 107 vorsnpxa Arrodmo) v

“aw Jo pouad patjioads € 10AC WAl 301ARS 1Ga3p dyg1oads
£ Jo yuatafed i 107 JII] AAd] o1 O} aseaout Amroduia) v

"JIGI] AA] ) OPILDAD
ABUT AJIUNUIGOD B YONM AqQ JUROUTR CHTIIKETE 31 ST 3]
“Jrary AA9] 3Y3 pur 3urjidan A2 o) U23MI9G S0UAIAYIP YL

WEI AAs] 5 AN B 0] asealoul Jusueuad v

"sse> Apadord 2y

10} ope1 xe} s, 3eak 101Kl 9] Aq onjeA PIsSISSE PISEIIOUI )
FwApdgmiz Aq psje[mofed st ] "UOIEN{EASI O] anp JoU g
‘stoneaoual Ajtadord pue STOISIDATOD OPUOY ‘STOISIATPANS

j9a1ed “UOBONYSUOD MIT O} Snp Jseq Xey 51 W sseann] |

Ajmnaros ot m Apadord [euosiad pue (w21 s[quxe}
[J¥ JO 2M[BA 4SLD 1L} PU¥ [JIY [BJO} YL JO 8¢ T 0f [euby

-arqeatdde 11 splisao ; motsnioxa jqsp snyd
1018 mau std 8457 snjd Aad] s JeaA isu] o) fenbs ek
TAAIE € 01 AAJ] UBD AJIUNUITIOD ¥ JUNOUNE WNIXeW 3§

‘soxe} Apadod [euosiad pue [ear ysSnong

SSTRI URd ANUNHIoD & anaAdy ay) s Lad] xe) Qradord a3

SINHAL INVLEOdIN



Joint Proclamation for Mystic Regional Emergency Planning Committee

among

Town of Arlington Town of Lynnfield City of Saugus
Town of Bedford City of Malden City of Somerville
Town of Belmont City of Medford Town of Stoneham
Town of Burlington City of Melrose Town of Wakefield
City of Chelsea Town of North Reading City of Watertown
Town of Concord City of Peabody Town of Wilmington
City of Everett Town of Reading Town of Winchester
Town of Lexington City of Revere Town of Winthrop
City of Lynn City of Salem City of Weburn

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that;

WHEREAS, the provision of local emergency planning is mandated by the Federal Emergency Planning and Community Right fo Know Act
of 1286 (EPCRA), thereby creating the Massachusetts State Emergency Response Commission (SERC), and

WHEREAS, said Advisory Council has designated each municipality as the lecal emergency planning committee, and
WHEREAS, municipalities are authorized pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 40, Section 4A to enter info inter-municipal agreements, and

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement wish to coordinate and meet to investigate the parameters of an agreement that may be entered
into pursuant to said M.G.L. Chapter 40, Section 4A for the provision of joint local emergency planning services, and

WHEREAS, the pariies to this Agreement desire o work cooperatively and enter info a mutually acceptable inter-municipal agreement for
the provision of such services under Secticn 4A of Chapter 40 of the General Laws of Massachuseits.

NCW THEREFORE, the undersigned communities, acting through their respective executive officers, do hereby proclaim, as follows:

1.  This agreement is intended for the twenty-seven (27} undersigned communities to accept local plans and to share resources;
The parties hereto agree t¢ designate individuals to meet regularly to plan for regional emergency planning services, subject to
the approval as required by Section 4A of Chapter 40 of the General Laws of Massachusetts;

3. The patties hereto agree that such representatives shall use their best efforts to complete a suitable regional plan subject to
necessary approval by the local executive authorities;

4. Such plan shall clearly state (1) its maximum term and duraticn not to exceed twenty-five years; (2) the maximum financial
liability of the parties thereto as detemmined by authorizing votes in their respective municipalities; (3) the authorization of the
necessary authority to enter into such agreement; (4) the method of keeping records of services performed, cost incurred, and
reimbursement and coniributions received; (5) the keeping of financial accounts and issuance of financial statements to the
parties; (6) the method of payment of bills and invoices; (7} the method of withdrawal of a party from such agreement; (8) the
methed of appointing officers to serve in such committee; and (9) all other necessary and relevant provisions incidental to the
operaticn and effectiveness of municipal contracts and finance; (10) a resource list comprised of personnel and equipment from,
but not limited to, public works, fire, police, emergency management, school, housing, health, and the executive department of
each community.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF | have herewith set my hand and seal of the

City/Town of

Chief Elected Official Date

35



9¢

pue Spaou SuruTRI) 197o8d) pue judsed pue ‘sardrjod
uoneINPS [B15ads ‘SANI[IQESTP Yim SIuapnls o) papraoid sao1A13s uonjeonps [erdads Jo Anpenb ay) souequs 01 soPIUIUO ) [0OYIS
Surpeay pue IDLISIC] [O0YIS TuIpey 1) pue Dy JHS Surpeay a4 udamiaq sisrxad digsuoneai Suniom SANBIOQR[[0D B ‘SEIIYM

PUR {UOBULIOJUL 3JRYS 0] WnJoJ & sapraoid pue ‘spaau [eroads yum uaip(iyo jo swuared Jo spomiau e sajowold ‘Ajrunmmod
) Ul SPA2U [B133ds YIrm udIp[IyD 1k Jo 1moddns pue 107 109dsar Jo Furpueisiopun 1918913 pIemol SYIoM HVJHS SUIPeIY 1) SBITIYM

pUE {sme[ moneanps [eraads [e1opa) pur 21eIs Iopun suripiens pue sjusied 1e1) pue SjusSpnls Jo
sy 2y} uo ‘Aqpenuue doygsiiom auo ISes] 1k ‘DY IS Supeay 2yl yum uoneiadood ur ‘sionpuod 1Pusi(] (0095 SuIpesy ayl ‘SeaIsym

PUE {S30IN0SAI PUE JJEIS JO AN[IQE[IRAR 911 O]
10[qns pue 051eyd INOWIM “FONIWTIOT) JOOTIS ) WO FDURISISSE SIATII DIV JHS SUIpedy o) ‘sonnp IIo1) JO 9SIN0J oF) UT “SBAIIYA

pue ‘SMe[AQ asoy) 0} Juensind SaA[ISWAY) WIIAOS pur
sainpao0id [puoneido pue $1201J0 SuIpIeSal SMBIAQ PaysIqeIse A (par-luaied pue SurwsA0F-19s S1 DV JIS TuIpeay] ay) ‘Sea1dym

pue ‘¢ uonag ‘gz 1dey) IIX apLL T Hed ‘sme [elouar) s)asnydessely Jopun sweisord uoneonpa [e1oads s 291wo
[00Y9s ayl Jo uopeneas pue Juowdoppadp ‘Suruuerd oy ur dedronied 03 S[RIdIO JOOYIS UM $190w ARINFAI pue ‘SINIIQRSIP
[ SJUOPMIS JO AJOJES PUB TOTIRONPS I} UO INTWIWO)) JOOYIS o) TUISIAPE (1M paSIeyd ST DV JHS SUTPeY 1) ‘SLaIOyM

pue 52014138 JO uoista0ad 1) 10} swa)sAs Furaoadwr pue Furdo[aAsp JO JUSWAD [BUUSSS U ST AIYSISPRS] DV LS YHA ORI OSU0D
1B} S10123J1(] ucneInpy [BIAAS pasiApe uoneanpy AIRpuodas pur AIRUSWS|T JO JuawIrda(g SHSSNYDIESSRIA] A1) ‘SEaIYM

PUE SIOLISIP [O0YIS 10 ‘UMO) “AID OB JO SIIUIUOI [00YIS AQ (DVJHS) [1OUN0) AIOSIAPY Judied
uonedpy [e1dadg € Jo uawysijqeiss ay) Sumbar me $3asnydeSSeIA] Yl JO ATRSISAIUUER YlGE Y} SYIBW G707 18dA ) ‘SERIdYM

ST0T IWIAON

JIUOJA SSIUIIBAAY IVIAS



AN

I8quIsy “YOL1I8H A[8les) usiey] 19(UIBIN ‘100BY O[1BL) AIB18108% ‘SI[[1£)-9S0Y UsIey

ey D) 90IA ‘Aqdiniy essIPn ey ‘Astel] wydoistyn

ONIAVIY JO qUvod LOT1ds

"20UBAISSqO SH Ul AjBunuy a1edipiied pue uaa2 SIY] Jo 20usziubod axel 0] fuipeay 10 sluapisal {8 sbin puy

HINOW SSINIHYMYV DVd3S

‘aq 0} GZ0Z JaquisAcN wie2o4d 0} pieog 109]95 Buipeay ay3 alojdwi ‘eswiwo?) [0oyos Suipesy syl ‘em ‘ai0iaiay) ‘MON

“AUnuuIoD 2y} Ul S|ENPIAIPUI PUE SJUSPTIS 11211 10} SJBDOAPE 0]
$32IN0S21 PUR W PRI APBaI[e JIaY] JO 2AIF O SIS1UN[0A 12YJ0 pue ‘sueipiens ‘sjuared Jo apew sI DV IS SWIpey ) ‘Sealoym

pue ‘sjeuorssoyoid pue ‘sjuapnis ‘s1ojeanpd ‘sjudred 01 sdoysIIoM [UOTIRWIOIUT SIPIACI HYJHS TUIPRIY 9] SBITIYM
pue spasu [eoads gum sjuspnis Jo

uorsnjoul pue ‘ooueldasoe ‘FuipueIsiopun 93eImModua 01 AJUNWIWOoD JY) UMM Se [[9s SB ‘sdnoi3 pue ‘S[Iounod ‘Ssuoneziuesio [BUOnRu
PUR ‘9]B1S ‘[BI0] ‘SIOqUIDW DV IS U22M19Q UONBULIOJUI JO SULIRYS PUB UONEIUNWIWOD sajowiold )y JI§ Surpeay ay) ‘sealdym



Legal Notice

s

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Reading:

Please take notice that the Sclect Board of the Town of Reading will hold a public hearing
on Tuesday, November 4, 2025 at 7:00 PM in the Select Board Meeting Room at Town Hall, 16
Lowell Street, Reading, MA or also available remotely on Zoom to act on a Transfer of License
Application for an Annual Wine and Malt Beverage Restaurant License located at 76 Haven Street,
Reading, MA from Palatat Pattenesuan, d/b/a Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant to Bangkok Spice
LLC, d/b/a Bangkok Spice.

A copy of the proposed documents regarding this topic will be in the Select Board packet

on the website at www.readingma.gov

All interested parties are invited to attend the hearing i person or remotely via Zoom; or
may submit their comments in writing or by email prior to 6:00 p.m. on November 4, 2025 to

townmanager(@readingma.gov.

By order of
Matthew A. Kraunelis, Esq.
Town Manager

38



READING POLICE DEPARTMENT

18 Union Street » Reading, Massachusetts (1857
Emergency Only: 811 « All Other Calls: (781) 944-1212 » Fax: (781) 844-2893
Web: www.cl.reading.ma.us/police/

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Transfer of License for Palatat Pattenesuan (SP)
d/b/a Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant located at 76 Haven Street

Cetober 29, 20125

Chief David Clark
Reading Police Department
15 Union Street

Reading, MA 01867

Chiet Clark,

As directed by vour Office and in accordance with Reading Police Department Policy and
Procedures, 1 have placed together an executive summary of the application for a Transfer of
Retail Alcoholic Beverage License for Wine and Malt Beverage License #00031-RS-1016.

The current location of this license is 76 Haven Street, and the current licensee 1s Palarat

Pattenesuan {SP). The proposed transferee is Bangkok Spice LLC. The store will continue te be
at the same location.

Principals:
¢ Wikanda Oottajak
s Inthira Khunlertdee

I find no reason why the transfer of license application should not go forward.

Respecifully Submitied,

TR r
e 7 ’/ ’,:"j" ‘ )
o
L% Det. Richard Abate
Criminal Division Commander

39



D pieLast Law

Joseph P. DiBlasi, Esq. ZEZJ 0T -7 Rl 24
jdiblasiadiblasilaw.com

October 7, 2025

BY HAND

Town of Reading

Attre Mr. Mart Kraunelis, Town Manager
16 Lowell Street

Reading, MA 01867

Re:  Our Client: Bangkok Spice, LLC
) Current Licensee; Palarat Pattanescan d/b/a
i Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant
||||||||||||||||| Premises : 76 Haven Street
Application for Transfer of Wine and Malt Beverage License

Dear Mr. Kraunelis:

Enclosed please find the following documents in regard to the application for transfer of
license:

Monetary Transmittal Form of $200.00 fee paid t¢ ABCC;
DOR Certificate of Good Standing of Licensee;
DUA Certificate of Compliance of Licensee;
Transfer Application;
Manager Application;
Vote of the Entity;
Certificate of Qrganization of Bangkok Spice, L.LC; Certificate of Amendment:
and Business Entity Summary of Bangkok Spice, LLC;
CORI Authorization Forms {Wikanda Oottajak and Inthira Khunlertdee);
9, Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 14, 2025;
10, Proof of Citizenship of Mavager-
a. United States Certificate of Naturalization for Wikanda Qottajak (copy);
and
b. United States Passport (informational page) for Wikanda Oottajak (copy);
1 1. Supporting Financial Documents to show proof of available funds;
12. Letter of Intent to Lease the commercial Premises;
13. Floor Plan at Premises;
14, Advertisement- drafi; and
15, Check payable to the Town of Reading in amount of $50.00.

A ol

o %0

B4R Par Street, Suite 200
Morth Reacding, s Q’H B
[P} 27E.664, 6500

(F) 978 464 5118

A0 s Love. corm




Please schedule this application for a hearing with the Select Board at your earliest
opportunity. Please also let me know if you require any additional information.

Thank you for your kind attention to this matter.
Very truly yours,
T, e /\J\//\}\\
f?‘v
Joseph P. DiBlasi

JPD/slj
Enclosures
CC:  Bangkok Spice, LLC
William Crowley, Esq., attorney for Licensee

41




The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoheolic Beverages Conirol Conunission
U5 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelseq, MA 02150-2358
WWHLIRass.gov/abes

RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE APPUCATION
MONETARY TRANSMITTAL FORM

APPLICAYION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

APPLICATION SHOULD BE COMPLETED OR-LINE, PRINTED, SIGHNED, AND SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
LICERSIMG AUTHORITY,

ECRT CODE: RETA

Please make $200,00 payment here: ABCC PAYMENT WERSITE

PAYMENT MUST DENGTE THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE CORPORATION, LLC, PARTNERSHIP, OR INDIVIDUAL AND INCLUDE THE
PAYMENT RECEIFY

ABCC LICENSE NUMBER {If AN EXISTING LICENSEE, CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE CITY) —

PALATAT PATTENESUAN (SP) D/B/A BANGKOK SPICE THAI RESTAURANT ]

ENTITY/ LICENSEE NAME

ADDRESS (76 HAVEN STREET |

CITY/TOWN I\REAE&ENG i STATE (MA 21P CODE N(Mgﬁ? q

For the following transactions (Check all that apply):

D Wew License D Change of Location D Change Of CIASS e, anmsal £ Seasoml ﬂ Changse Corporate Structurg . Cem ¢ LL
_|- Transfer of Lizense Dmemtm of Licensed Premises m Change of Licanse Type e cus / restaurant) ml’ieﬂge of Collateral g.e. Unese/Stock)
D Chinnge of Manager u Changs Corporate Marme . Change of CALBONY (e, All Acchat MWire, Wik UMmmmmmU{}wamg Agreement
[T Cnange of Ofticers/ Change of Ownership interest || ssuance /Transfer of Stack/New Stockholder  [__Jchange of Hours
Directors/ LLE Managers (LLC Members/ LLF Parners,
Trstoos) D Othwer | 1 D(‘,hange of DBA
THE LOCAL LICENSI LITHORITY RAUST SUBMIT THIS

APPLICATION ONCE M*PRQWE@ YiaTHE ePLACE PORTAL

Alecholic Beverages Control Conmission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA 02150-2358

42




VT8, T 58 AM Cunaih - Receipt $rom nl e

Wikanda §

Raceipt from nCourt

1 rassae

customerservice@neourl.com <customerservice@noourl.com> Tue, Oct 7, 2028 at 12:07 AM
Ter

YOUR RECEIPT >

Pleage include the payment receipt with your application, Thaak you,

Name: Massachusetis Alooholic Beverages Control Cammission - Retail
Acktress 1. 9% Fourth Street, Suile 3
Ciy: Chalses
State: Massachusetts
Lip: 02180

First MNarra: Wikands Lasgi Mame: Oothajak

Address 1)
City, StatarTemitory, MA zip:

Phose:)

FILING FEES-RETAIL Bangkok Spice LLC $200.00

Receipt Date: 10/7/2025 12:07.05 aAM ET Convenlence Fea: 30,38
Invoice Number Total Amiount Paid: §200.35

Crganization
Mame

Address 1 78 taven Slrest
Address 2 Reading
City
State/Teritary

Hangkok Spice LLG

2ip
Pricne Muenbar

Emai

IMPORTANT INFORMATION »:

Please verify the information shown above. Your payment has been submitled w© the location isted above.

bty sl oople com/mnibis 1Ko L asiel) | viewesphd searelisalldpecosthicstinesd £ T B3 294 3575 1680 TEM sinpl sy IB4STRASETSI6RMTRO - 43 i1



ot esatth of Mhasselusetns

arbyynent ol s
;.. Cessiip LRI
. T OF GOOGD STANDESG ANIVOR TAX COMPLIANCE
‘Gggﬁfwgi*“%“I*H}Dﬁﬁ'f'ﬁmggnﬁﬁﬁw}Héi{’{Egawl-’fi‘m“i%%h
FATTARERCA N

i
DA TTAMESCAN dha BASMGKOK SPICE bon complianee with it autiong uider Chaptey

£ ol the Wassaoh S Ceneral Laws,

H b PP vy e crm et s i PR Free e LR PERIE]
Darnn v iahass SLCD e unomirlon et i

Thiv eeiti

achimiaialorod by g

T SRR AN .
TR TATAES RN R TEE FIAN

TR, o Tnnes et gy ol pros o o

by
[ R

Thie be gof 4 svaicer of Ben baed upder Clapter 620, weviion 5.0 of e Wlamsaiimietls Gofera

P,

[ i DO F T esutea gy f
Wikyarr £ 1 Brirve queestions? i
3 B e s ’ Oy [P .
Gl [SERIS SR ; b A Pt Pl
TR
R R T L R A TR T S S P Pive Ve

inciading vour Taxpayer Bl ol Righis, apvd Rloes T ommeet for onsy s W v Our aoceing

& Foonsow o tomdnio st aoonling
o Coninct B using c-neEsigy

s oMby up el foossve papn

AR VITR A E R TR W RIAASTANAS

a4



BaBias, 1119 M BALARAT PATTANESUARE - Lnemolowrient Servicas for Brgdoyers | dass.gov

Bapartment of Urernployment Assistancs ﬂﬁ;ﬂ’ﬂ | !EMjEE E%@m{ %ﬁ

Erowrrnanweralth of 8o sachasetis

ey e OHoe of Lobnr & Workloro o Dove gt

Certiticate of Comphiance
Dhate Sapderndrer 20, 2025
Lattor i F OO0 D -
Faf Adaind AT TAINE Suan Euipss [0 (F L0 ]

FEAVE N G
READING RI& TTRAT.2H21

COR ey SULS AL ARAT PRATTANE Ry e samiomt oy

et eened Seore Lt e il e hl e

s e e oyt tear Te 1 ey, O s DA i TR T i 3T s i

P e

e e
S e

Woeples Thmb rvg o

(hopreartrerid 454 L

g st
ey
Dradpraprisei vl f Loy o it ent Ags e

Frvasd e Flepange Prforoementi vass o

e

ORI TTN I

RS RS SR ET R TR ST BRI

FEEFE Y RS LI L JRVIE SR SRR PR T L

R AT S OB L TV RS e T ROl i s TR TP

a5




The Commonwealth of Massachusefts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Conmmission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www. mass.govabec

APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

durticipality

1, TRANSACTION INFORMATION [ piedge of inventory [ change of Class
|| Transfer of License D Pledge of License l:] Change of Category

1 |Alteration of Premises L:] Pledge of Stock D Change of License Type
[_]change of Location (§12 ONLY, e.3. “club” to “restaurant”)
[ Management/Operating Agreement [ other | |

Please provide a narrative overview of the transaction(s) being apptied for, On-premises applicants should also provide a description of
the intended theme ar concept of the business operation. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

58 seat Thai Restaurart

TYPE CLASS
512 Restaurant - ﬁine and Malt Beverages  |~JAnnual |~

3, BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION

The entity that will be issued the license and have operational control of the premises.

Entity Name Bangkok Spice LLC

DBA Bangkok Spice Manager of Record  Wikanda Ootiajak

sweernsses |76 Haven St, Reading, MA 01867

Addt Phone Webhsite

4, DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

Please provide a complete description of the premises to be licensed, including the nurmber of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. If this application alters the current premises, provide the
specitic changes from the last approved description. You must also submit a floor plan.

Restaurant located at 76 Haven Street, Reading MA, including all equipment, fixtures, appliances,
furniture, pots, pans, dishes, flatware, beer & wine license. Premises is street-level. No changes from
Bxisting business.

Total $q. Footage 884 Seating Capacity 28 Qecupancy Number

Number of Entrances |} Number of Exits |2 Numbar of Floors 1

46




APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE
'S. CURRENT OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST

‘ ' By what means is the
Transferor Entity Name | Palarat Pattanesuan license being Purchase M
transferred?
List the individuals and entities of the current ownership. Attach additional pages if necessary utilizing the format below.
Name of Principal Title/Position Percentage of Ownership
Palarat Pattanesuan Owner 100%
Name of Principal Title/Position Percentage of Ownership
Name of Principal Title/Position | Percentage of Qwnership
Name of Principal Title/Position Percentage of Owpership
Nameof Principal Title/Position Percentage of Ownership

6. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST

it all individuals or entities that will have a direct or indirect, beneficial or financial interest in this license {E.g. Stockholders, Officers,
Directars, LLC Managers, LLC Members, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.). Attach additional page(s) provided, if necessary, utilizing Addendum
Al

« The individuals and titles listed in this section must be identical to these filed with the Massachusetts Secretary of State.
» The individuais identified in this section, as well as the proposed Manager of Record, must complete a CORI Release Form.

« Please note the following statutory requirements for Directors and LLC Managers:
On Premises {E.g.Resfourant; Club/Hotlel) Directors or LLC Monagers - At least 50% must be US citizens;
OFf Premises(Liquor Store) Birectors or LLC Managers - All must be US citizens and a majority must be
Massachusetts residents.

o If you are a Multi-Tiered Organization, please attach a flow chart identifying each corporate interest and the individual owners of
each entity as well as the Articles of Organization for each corporate entity. Every Individual must be identified in Addendum A,

Name of Principal Residential Address L ssN DOB
Wikanda Oottajak
Title and o Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Manager 80% | @es O | [®Yes ONo | [ @ves (Orio
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB _
Inthira Khunlertdee |§
Title and ot Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Chef Employee 20% ves Oes @o | | ®rves Oio
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Title and or Posftion Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Oves Oro | [Oives Ono_| | Oves Oio
Mame of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
i
Title and or Position percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Oves Oro_| [Oves Oto | | Oves Oto
47

*




APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE
6. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST (Continued...)

Narne of Principal Residential Address SN
Wikanda Oottajak N

oot L Per;:;l;of S ——
Manager 80% (®)ves Oo (®ves Orio (®ves Oio

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DCB

Inthira Khunlertdee

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Chef Employee 20% (Oes @no | {(Oves (®no IYes Oro

MName of Principat Residential Address 55N DB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MaA, Resident

‘e‘m OND ‘ OYes O\Im as Oéo

Additional pages attached? | (Oves (®)no

CRIMINAL HISTORY
Has any individual listed in question 6, and applicable attachments, ever been convicted of 4 O\(eg n

State, Federal or Military Crime? if ves, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions.

GA, INTERESY IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

Does any individual or entity identified in question 6, and applicable attachments, have ary direct or indirect, beneficial or financial
interest in any other license to sell alcoholic beverages?  Yes D Mo I yes, list in table below. Attach additionak pages, if
necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Narre License Type License Name Municipality

6B. PREVIOUSLY HELD INTEREST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

Has any individual or entity identified in question 6, and applicable attachments, ever hetd a direct or indirect, beneficial or financial
interest in a license to sell alcoholic beverages, which is not presently held? Yes No{v|
if ves, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Name License Type License Name

ag




APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

6C. DISCLOSURE OF LICENSE DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Have any of the disclosed licenses listed it question 6Aor 68 ever been suspended, revoked or cancelled?
Yes [ 1ho[v/] I yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Date of Action Mame of Licerse City Reascn for suspension, revocation or cancellation |

7. CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Entity Legal Structure MC - Date of incorporation (08/03/2025
io j 7 !
State of Incorporation Massac:huse s 1 s the Corporation pubticly traded OYeg No

8, OCCUPANCY OF PREMISES

Please complete all fields in this section. Please provide proof of legal occupancy of the premises.

If the applicant entity owns the premises, a deed is required.

I \easing or renting the premises, a signed copy of the iease is required.

If the lease is contingent on the approval of this Hicense, and a signed lease is not available, a copy of the unsigned lease and & letter
of intent to lease, signed by the applicant and the tandlord, is required.

IF the real sstate and business are owned by the same individuals tisted in question &, either individually or through separate
busiriess entities, a signed copy of a lease between the two entities is required.

*

Please indicate by what means the applicant will occupy the premises

Lease -

Landlord Name {Colombo,O'Leary&Colombo R

Lease Beginning Date Rent per Month
Lease Ending Date Rent per Year
Will the Landlord receive revenue based on percentage of alcohol sales? OYes Mo

f

9. APPLICATION CONTACT
The application contact is the person who the licensing authorities should contact regarding this application.

Name: Wikanda Oottajak Phone:

Title:  Manager B Emait:

49 4




10. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

A. Purchase Price for Real Estate

$0

B. Purchase Price for Business Assets

$125,000

C. Other* {Please specify)

Renovation $15000

D. Total Cost $1 40 ,_000

SOURCE OF CASH CONTRIBUTION

*Other: {i.e. Costs associated with License Transactian including
but not limited to: Property price, Business Assets, Renovations
costs, Construction costs, initial Start-up costs, Inventory costs, or

specify other costs}:”

Please provide documentation of avaitable funds. (E.g. Bank or other Financial institution Statements, Bank Letter, etc.)

Name of Contributor Amount of Contribution
Wikanda Oottajak $112,000 saving 80%
Inthira Khunlertdee $28,000 saving 20%

Total:

SOURCE OF FINANCING

Please provide signed financing documentation.

Name of Lender

Amount

Type of Financing

Is the lender a licensee pursuant
to M.G.L, Ch. 138.

N/A

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes ONO

FINANCIAE INFORMATION

Provide a detailed explanation of the form(s) and source(s) of funding for the cost identified above.

11. PLEDGE INFORMATION

Please provide signed pledge documentation.
Are you seeking approval for a pledge? @Yes (®No

Please indicate what you are seeking to pledge (check all that apply) D License D Stock D inventory

To whom is the pledge being made?

N/A

50




12, MANAGER APPLICATION

A MANAGER INFCRMATION
The individual that has been appointed to manage and control the licensed business and premises.

Proposed Manager Name |Wikanda Qottajak Date of Birth - SSN _

.Residential Address

Email

Please indicate how many hours per week you interd to be on the licensed pramises 40

B, CITIZENSHIP { BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Ao you 3 U5, Citizen/Qualifisd Alies under the Immigration and Nationatity Act? ‘Yra-s O ey
If yes, attach one of the foliowing documents: US Passport, Voter's Certificate, Birth Certificate, Naturalization Fapers, Permanent Resident. Card "Green
{ard,” ar Empleyment Authorization Document,

Harve you ever been convicted of a state, federal, or military crime? OYES 0
¥ yes, Fill out the table balow and attach an affidavit providing thie details of any and all convictions. Attach additional pages, it necessary, utilizing the
Format betow,

Date Munigipality Charge Disposition

C. EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION
Please provide your employment history. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the format below.

start Date | End Date Position Employer Supervisor Name
2018 |Present| Enterprise Operation Toast,INC Alexis Otero
2016 |Present| Parttime server | Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant |  Palarat Pattanesuan
1 2016 | 2018 Part time server Kadaki Restaurant Yoshimi Masuda

0. PRICE DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Have you held a beneficial or financial interast in, ar been the manager of, & license (o sell alcohobic beverages that was subject to
disciplinary action? ' o ;0 o 1 yes, nlease fill out the table. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the format below.

Date of Action Name of License State [City  |Reason for suspension, revocation or canceliation

i hereby swear under the poins and peneities of peciury thet the informmtion | hove provided in this applicetion is true ond accurate

Managet's Signature _ {'ﬁﬁ 1‘5. A e;kl i @}Hm m}( _ Date ﬁl(“ i; G f /} & :’ b

31




Are you requesting approval to utilize a management company through a management agreement?
If yes, please fill out section 13.

DYes . Mo

Please provide a narrative overview of the Management Agreement. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

N/A

IIPCHRTANT NOTE: A management agreement is where a licensee authorizes a third party to control the daily operations of
the license premises, while retaining ultimate control over the license, through a written contract. This does not pertdin to o
fiquor license manoger that is employed directly by the entity.

13A. MANAGEMENT ENTITY

List all proposed individuals or entities that will have a direct or indirect, beneficial or financial interest in the management Entity (E.g.
Stockholders, Officers, Directors, LLC Managers, LLF Partners, Trustees etc. ).

Entity Name Address Phone

Name of Principal Residential Address 55 DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen MA Resident
Ove O | [Ores Oro ] [Oves O

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DCB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director us Citizen MA Resident
Ores Oro_| [Qves Ono_| | Oves O

Mame of Principal Residential Address SN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director LS Citizen MA Resident
Orves Ono_ | |Oves One | | Orves O

Name of Principatl Residential Address SSN poB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director us Citizen MA Resident
Ores O | [Oves Ono

CRIMINAL HISTORY

Has any individual identified above ever been corwicted of a State, Federal or Military Crime?

If yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions.

13B. EXISTING MANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS AND INTEREST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

LICENSE

Does any individual or entity identified in question 134, and applicable attachments, have any direct or indirect, beneficial or financial
interest in any other license to seil alcoholic beverages; and or have an active management agreerment with any other ticenseess?

Yes I:] Ko if ves, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Name

License Type

License Name

Municipality

52




13C. PREVIOUSLY HELD INTEREST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

I-!as any individual or entity identified in question 13A, and applicable attachments, ever held a direct or indirect, beneficial or
financial interest in a license to sell alcoholic beverages, which is not presently held?

Yes |:| No If yes, tist in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Name License Type License Name Municipality

13D. PREVIOUSLY HELD MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Has any individual or entity identified in question 13A, and appticable attachments, ever held a management agreement with any
other Massachusetts licensee?

Yes[ ] No If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Licensee Name License Type Municipality Date(s) of Agreement

13E. DISCLOSURE OF LICENSE DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Have any of the disclosed licenses listed in question section 138, 13C, 13D ever been suspended, revoked or cancelled?
Yes D No If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

Date of Action Name of License City Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation
13F. TERMS OF AGREEMENT

a. Does the agreement provide for termination by the licensee? Yes No

b. Will the licensee retain control of the business finances? Yes No

¢. Does the management entity handle the payroll for the business? Yes No

d. Management Term Begin Date | | e Management Term End Date |

£. How will the management company be compensated by the licensee? (check all that apply)
$ per month/year (indicate amount) | |

D % of alcohol sales (indicate percentage) | _|
D% of overall sales (indicate percentage) ﬁ |

[ Jother (please explain) [

ABCC licensee Officer/LLC Mandager Management Agreement Enfity Officer/LLC Manager
signature: | 7 | Signature: f -
Title: | o ' Titte:

Date: | | Date:

33




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please utilize this space to provide any additional information that will support your application or to clarify any answers
provided above.

L3




APPLICANT'S STATEMENT

Wikanda Oottajak } the: [_lsole proprietor; L] partner; [ corparate principal; LLC/LLP manager
Authorized Signatory

Bangkok Spice LLC |

Nami of the Endity/Corporation

Bl

of E

hereby submit this application (hereinafter the “Application”), to the local licensing autharity {the “LLA") and the Alcoholic
Beverages Contral Commission (the “ABCC” and together with the LLA collectively the “Licensing Autharities”) for approval.

1 do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that | have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the
Application, and as such affirm that all statements and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief,

| further submit the following 1o be true and accurate:

{1} | understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the
Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying

documents in reaching its decision;

{2} | state that the Jocation and description of the proposed licensed premises are in compliance with state
and local laws and regulations;

{3) { understand that while the Application is pending, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
information submitted therein. 1 understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in

disapproval of the Application;

{4) | understand that upen appreval of the Application, | must notify the Licensing Autharities of any change in the
ownership as approved by the Licensing Authorities. | understand that failure to give such nofice to the
Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted;

(5} | understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including,
but not fimited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license;

{6) | understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license;

(7 I understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or
consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval
of the Licensing Authorities;

(8} | understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and
representations made in the Application may result in sanctions, including the revocation of any license for which the

Application was suhmitted; and

{9} | understand that any false statement or misrepresentation will constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or
sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted.

{10} 1 confirm that the applicant corporation and each individual listed in the ownership section of the application is in
good standing with the Massachusetts Department of Revenue and has complied with all laws of the Commonweaith
relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support.

sigratore: | 4l Lornda Ugto, et pae: [ L CJC (17005

Title: LManager
55




ADDENDUM A

6. PROPOSED OFFICER, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST {Continued...}

List all individuats oF entities that will have a direct or indirect, beneficial or financiat interest in this license {E.g. Stockholders, Officers,
Birectors, LLC Managers, LLP Partners, Trusiees etc. ).

Entity Marme Pert;enwtage gf Ommhip fry Entity being Licensed

Bang kok Spice LLC {Write “NA" if this is the entity being licensed)

N/A

Name of Principal Residential Address SSM DOB

Wikanda Qottajak .
Title and or Position Percantage of Ownership  Directors L1.C Manager US Citizen MA Resident

Manager 80% @ves Ono | [@®ves O | 1 (@ves Oio
Name of Principal Residential Address 55N DOB

inthira Khunlernidee *
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager LS Citizen Ma Resident

Chef Employee 20% Oives @io | [ Oves @rio | | ®ves O
Name of Principal Residential Addrass S5N DOB
Titie and or Position Percentage of Qwnership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA ResidenE

es ONO Yes ONO OY@S‘ ON\D

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN __U@B

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Oves Oro | [Oves O [Oves O
Name of Principal Residential Address S5M boB
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager LS Citizen MA Resident
‘ OYES No as ONo‘ OYes ONo
Name of Principal Restdential Address SSN DOB
|
Titie and o Position Percentage of Ownership  Directors LLC Manager LS Citizen MaA Resident
[ ‘t’@s ON@ Yes ON-:) l Yes ONﬁ
Name of Principal Residential Address 55N DOB
Title and or Positian rcentage of Ownership  Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Oves Ono_| {Oes Oro | | Ores O
CRIMINAL HISTORY

Has any individual identified above aver been convicted of a State, Federal or Military Crime?

if yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions,

O!es No

56




MA Corporations Search Entity Summary

Iofl

Secretary of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
William Francis Galvin

Business Entity Summary
10 Nuwinbe r:_ Request gertificate

Summary for: BANSKOK SFICE LLC

‘¥he exact name of the Domestic Limited Liability Company (LLC): BARGKOK SPICE {LC

hitpsz//eorp.sec.state. ma.us/CorpWeb/CorpSearch/CorpSummary.asp. ..

" Mesw gearch

: Identification Wumberz—

Sk

Date of Organization in Massachusetts: 09-03-2025 Urate of Revival:

Last date certain:

| The tocation or address where tha records are malatained (A PO box is not & valid location or address):

Address: 76 HAVEN 5T
City or town, State, Zip code, Country: READING, MA (1867 USA

The name and address of the Resident Agent:

Mame: WIKANDA OOTTAIAK

i Address:

. The pame and business address of each Manager:

' Title Individual rame Address
L MANAGER WIKANDA OOTTAIAK 76 HAVEM STREET READING, MA 01867 USA
: UsA

tn addition to the manager(s), the name and business address of the person(s) authorized to execute documents o
“be filed with the Corporations Pivisian:

Title Indlivicd ual Bame Address
GO SIGNATCRY WIKANDS OOTTAIAK 76 HAVEN ST READING, MA ULBE7 USA
: usa

The rame and business address of the persan(s} authorized to execute, acknowliadge, daliver, and record any
recordabla instrument purporting to affect an interest in reul property:

‘Fitler Indmvmuai nams Address e B
REAL PROPERTY WIKANDA COTTAJAK wEVZJ‘E‘L HAVEN ST READING, MA GLE6T USA
Uss,
Consant Confidential Data Merqer Aliowat Manufactisring

View filings for this business entity:

ALL FILTNGS

Anraal Reporn,

Annual Report - Professionai
Articles of Entity Conwversion

£t e g SF 8, £ S e,

view fitings.

Comments or notes associated with this business entity:

Mo pearch

10775025, 10:27 AM




CORPORATE VOTE

Bangkok Spice LL.C

The Board of Directors or LLC Managers of :
Entity Name
duly voted to apply to the Licensing Authority of |Reading and the
City/Town —
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Comrmission on o) - 23S
Date of Meating

For the following transactions {Check all that apply):

:] New License D Change of Location Ij Change of Class (e, Annual 7 Seasonslf [:_w] Change Corporate Structure de. Corp /1L
E Transfer of License E]Mteratim of {icensed Premises D Change of License Type .e. civb 7 restaurant) D Pledge of Coliateral e, Liense /5oy
:_l Change of Manager D Change Corporate Name Change of Category iz Al skcoholwine, Mty [:m Management/ Uperating Agreement
j Change of Officers/ Change of Qwnership interest lesuance/ Transfer of StockdNew Stockholder m Change of Hours
Directors/LLC Managers {LLC Members/ LLP Partners,
Trustees) D Other | ] D Change of DBA

“yOTED: To authorize  [Wikanda Oottajak
Name of Person

to sign the application submitted and to execute on the Entity's behalf, any necessary papers and
do all things required to have the application granted.”

“VOTED: To appoint Wikanda Oottajak

Name of Liquor License Manager

as its manager of record, and hereby grant him or her with full authority and control of the
premises described in the license and authority and control of the conduct of all business
therein as the licensee itself could in any way have and exercise if it were a natural person
residing in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.”

For Corporations ONLY

A true copy attest, A true copy attest,
\mé ﬂ”ﬁlﬁ ¥ dz"} L} Ujﬁeﬂ ) f,"’iii
Corporate Officer /LLC Manager Signature Carporation Clerk's Signature
Wikanda Oottajak
{Print Name) {Print Name}

58




MA SOC  Filing Number: 202568487420 Date: 9/3/2025 ©:34:50 PM

The Commonweaith of Massachusetts, William Francis Galvin
Corporations Division
One Ashburton Place - Floor 17, Boston MA 02108-1512 | Phone; &17-727-9840
Certificate of Organization
{General Laws, Chapter 156C, Section 12} Filing Fee: $500.00

Identification Number: B (ober will be assigned)

o)

¥

| 1. The exact name of the limited Hability company is:

BANGKOK SPICE LLC

Z. The address In the Cormmonwealth where the records will be maintained:

Number and 75 HAVEN ST

street:

Address 2

City or towni: READING State: MA Zip code: 01867

Country; UNITED STATES

3. The general character of business (if the mited liabifity company is organized to render
professional service, this form must be filed by fax, mail or in persen):

. RESTAURANT

4, The latest date of dissolution, if specified: {mm/dd/yyyy)

Jram—
H

5. The name and address of the Resident Agent:

Agent name: WIKANDA QOTTAJAK

Murmber and —

streat:

Address 2;

City ar town: — State: MA Zip code: —

s o e e R 1 1 R AR TP BTN AT AU 0 1 P -

[ WIKANDA OOTTAIAK,

resident agent of the above limited liability company, consent to my appointment as the resident
agent of the above limitad liability company pursuant to G. L. Chapter 1560 Section 12,

The name and business address of each manager, if any




7. The name and business address of the person(s) in addition to the manager(s}, authorized to
execute documents to be filed with the Corporations Division, and at least one person shall be

named if there are nc managers.

SOC SIGNATORY WIKANDA QOTTAJAK 76 HAVEN ST READING, MA 01867 USA

8. The name and business address of the person{s) authorized to execute, acknowledge, deliver and
record any recordabie instrument purporting to affect an inferest in real property:

REAL PROPERTY WIKANDA OOTTAJAK 76 HAVEN ST READING, MA 01867 USA

9. Additional matters:

10. This certificate is effective at the time and on the date approved by the Division, unless a
later effective date not more than ninety (90) days from the date of filing is specified:

Later Effective Date (mm/dd/yvyy): Time (HH:MM)

SIGNED UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY, this 3 Day of September, 2025,

WIKANDA OOTTAJAK

, Signature of Authorized Signatory.

60




MA SOC Filing Number:— Date: 9/3/2025 £8:34.50 PM

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

| hereby certify that, upon examination of this document, daly submitted to me, it appears
that the provisions of the General Laws relative 1o corporations have been eomplied with,
and | hereby approve said articles; and the fiting fee having been paid, said articles are

deemed to have been filed with me on;

September 03, 2025 08:34 PM

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN

Secretary of the Commonwealth

€1




MASOC Filing Number— Date: 10/2/2025 11:48:01 AM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, William Francis Galvin

Corporations Division
Cne Ashburton Place - Floor 17, Boston MA 07108-1312 | Phone: 6177279540

Certificate of Amendment
{General Laws, Chapter 156, Section 13) Filing Fee: $100.00

Identification NMumber: _

1.a. Exact name of the limited liability company: BANGKOK SPICE LLC

7] Check if amending entity name

1.b. The exact name of the limited liability company as amended, is:

BANGKOK SPICE LLC

1.c. The date of filing of the original certificate of organization:

9703/ 2025

2, Address in the Commonwealth where the records will be maintained:

Mumber and 76 HAVEN ST

street:

Address 2

City or town: READING State: MA Zip code:  01B6&7

Country: UNITED STATES

3. As amanded, the general character of business, and if the limited lability company is organized to
render professional service, the service to be renderad:

RESTAURANT

4, The latest date of dissolution, if specified: (mmy/dd/vyyy)

5. Name and addvess of the Resident Agent,

!
§
;.
Agent name! WIKANDA OOTTAIAK E
street:
Address 2;
City or town: I State: M 2o code: I




6. The name and business address of each manager, if any:

MANAGER WIKANDA OOTTAJAK 76 HAVEN STREET READING, MA 01867 USA

7. The name and business address of the person(s) in addition to the manager(s), authorized to
execute documents te be filed with the Corporations Division, and at feast one person shall be

named if there are no managers.

SOC SIGNATORY WIKANDA OOTTAJAK 76 HAVEN ST READING, MA 01867 USA

8. The name and business address of the person(s) authorized to execute, acknowledge, deliver and
record any recordable instrument purporting to affect an interest in real property:

REAL PROPERTY WIKANDA OOTTAJAK 76 HAVEN ST READING, MA 01867 USA

9. Additional matters:

10. State the amendments to the certificate:

CHANGE OF MANAGER

11. The amended certificate is effective at the time and on the date approved by the Division,
unless a later effective date not more than ninety (80) days from the date of filing is specified:

Later Effective Date {mm/dd/yyyy): Time {(HH:MM)

SIGNED UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY, this 2 Day of October, 2025,

WIKANDA OOTTAJAK

; Signature of Authorized Signatory.

63



MA SOC Filing Number: 202573897780 Date: 10/2/2025 11:48:01 AM

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

I hereby certify that, upon examination of this document, duly submitted to me, it appears
that the provisions of the General Laws relative to corporations have been complied with,
and I hereby approve said articles; and the filing fee having been paid, said articles are

deemed to have been filed with me on:

October 02, 2025 11:48 AM

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN

Secreiary of the Commonweaith

84




THE COMMCNWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND SECURITY
Departmant of Criminal Justice Information Services
200 Arlington Streed, Suite 2200, Chelsea, MA 02150
TEL: 617-860-4640 | TTY: 617-680-4606
MASS.GOVICHS

Criminai Offender Record information (CORI) Personal Request Form

I you have a valid Massachusetts LD. or driver’s license, you may submit vour COR! request online at Mass.gov/CIIS.
This form is only to be used to request your own personal COR! information. !n Massachusetts, it is iflegal for an
employer or any other entity to require someone to provide a copy of his/her personal CORL

A money order ar bank issued Cashier’s or Treasurer's check in the amount of $25.00 made out to the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts must be submitted with this form. Please note that these are the only acceptable forms of payment.
Do not send cash, personal checks, or business checks. This form, along with payment or indigency waiver, must be
mailed to the address above, Attn: CORI Unit.

* Are you submitting an indigancy waiver? [d¥es }Z]/ No

Please note: You will need to submit an indigency waiver if you are indigent. The indigency waiver form can be found
at https /e .mass. gwif;les/documents/ﬁﬂi?fﬂ9/19/aff|dawt-of-undngencvmﬁ pdf

Pl@am l:vp@: ur prmt claarly feenmns marked' lWIth an asterlsk 1‘) MILST b ompﬂﬂed
First Name; \f\ L‘ o d & Miclclie Initial:
* Last Name: O()“‘i A 3-0L ‘ﬁ

* Date of Birth (MM/DD/YYVY)

Suffix (Ir., Sr., etc):

bation Central File (PCFI Number{s) (if known}:

* | ast SIX digits of your Social Securit 11 do not have a Social Securily Mumber

Father’s first Name: Father's Last Nape:

Maother's First Name: Mother's Last Name;

i} please check this box if vou would ALSO like to request your personal CORI with your former last name(s):

Former Last Name 1.

Former Last Name 2:

Farmer Last Name 3:

Former Last Name 4;
{ ' - Mailing Address

* Street Address:

Apt. # or Suite

Persanal Phone N

Email Address:

*#*p EASE NOTE: If you are requesting your CORi for immigration purposes, and you have additional paperwork
regarding the names requested, please attach a copy of the paperwork to this farm.***

&5



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND SECURITY
Department of Criminal Justice Information Services
200 Artington Street, Suite 2200, Chelsea, MA 02150
TEL: 617-660-4640 | TTY: 617-660-4606
MASS.GOV/ICJHS

| hereby swear, under penalties of perjury, that the information | have provided above is true to the best of my

knowledge and belief.

W \’4 pvda O@H Y | 10 /,0 7 /200 5

Signature of Individual Authorizing CORI Reguest ) Date

4 compieted if you arecu rrentty mcarcerated‘ piease prcceed ta the next section.. : SO
On this 3 day of Oebober , 20 Lj’, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared
asy Kind & D""H“) =& [name of CORI requestar) and proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification,

which was _ grivert  laaave {Ex: Driver’s license, passport, etc.), to be the person whose name is signed on the

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that (he}(she) signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose.

%}K"/ Seplembe s 12, 202 ¥

Signature of Notary Y Public {Notary stamp or seal is alsp reguired) Date my Commission expires

““umu”,”

Name and rank of Correctional Facility Official (Please print.) Phone Number

Address of Correctional Facility

Signature of Correctional Facility Official Date

66




THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND SECURITY
Department of Criminal Justice Information Services
200 Arfington Street, Sulte 27200, Chelsea, MA 02150
TEL: §17-860-4840 | TTY: €17-860-4606
MASS.GOWCSS

Criminal Offender Record Information {CORI) Personal Request Form
If you have a valid Massachusetts 10D, or driver's license, you may submit your CORI request online at Mass.gov/CIIS.

employer or any other entity 1o require someone o orovide a copy of hisf/her personal CORL

A money order or bank issued Cashier's or Treasurer’s check in the amount of $25.00 made out to the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts must be subrmitted with this form. Please note that these are the only acceptable forms of payment,
Do not send cash, personal checks, or business checks. This form, along with payment or indigency waiver, must be
malled to the address above, Attn; CORI Unit,

: REQUEST INFORMATION;
* Are you submitting an indigency waiver? Cves B'No

Pleass note: You will need to submit an indigency waiver If you are indigent. The indigency waiver form can be found
at https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/19/affidavit-of-indigency_0.pdf

RGBT Dets

i,

HE

campleted,

| ?leasemgype or print clearly, ftems marked with an aste;skwf*) MUST be
* First Name: __Lnihira Middie Initial:
* Lass Namae: l‘i\"xun\*&r‘wfﬁ Suffix r., Sr., elc):

* Date of Birth (MM}E)WWW]:-mbation Central File (PCFY Number{s) {if known):
* Last SiX digits of your Social Security Number_f] | da not have a Sacial Security Number

Father's First Name: Father’'s Last Name:

hMother's First Name: Muother™s Last Name:
{.] Please check this box if you would ALSO like to request your personal CORI with your farmer last namefs):

Former Last Name 1:

Former Last Name 2.

Forrmer Last Name 3:

Former Last Name 4:

Mailing Address i

Personal Phone Number:

Email Address;

**RLEASE NOTE: If you are requesting your CORI for irmmigration purposes, and you have additional paperwork
regarding the names requested, please attach a copy of the paperwork to this form, ***

&7




THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND SECURITY
Department of Criminal Justice Information Services
200 Arlinglon Streed, Suite 2200, Chelses, MA 02150
TEL: 617-B60-4640 | TTY: 617-660-4608
MASS GOVICNS

| herehy swear, under penalties of perjury, that the information | have provided above is true to the best of my

knowledge and belief.

kiire, lﬁ.hunkerk&e{‘ { 0105“5

Signature of Individual Authorizing COR! Request Date

Auth |
Please note that ALL fields in this section must be completed by the Notary Public. This sect:on does nc-t need to be
completed if you are currently incarcersted; please proceed to the next section.

On this £ % day of Oct , 20,2 T before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared
/fwmf?éi FIL *’Z;{&M/;:wfz'{ié_(name of CORI requestar) and proved to me thraugh satisfactory evidence of identification,
which was L.}f Vi .;/,i,; i SR {Ex: Driver’s license, passport, etc.}, to be the person whose name is signed on the

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that (he){she) signed it voluntarily for its stated purpese,

z‘*w' w"‘! "w

& x“’
i -l 02/2/803,

S:Qnature of Notmy Pubiic {E:!ptaur}f stamp or seal is also required) Date my Commission expires
Y‘M il g v! iy
T ATIEN 77,

\
N

A
&:‘3- “- .:)m{a\&wiﬁﬁjﬁ Qﬂ;

% N %
., yb CJ;., ar w,f‘:a N.;J‘
"T!i«:w DH% \\“

iy

If you are currentiy incarcerated, a correctional facility official MUST complete the following section,

Nome and rank of Correctional Facility Official (Please print.) Phone Number

Address of Correctional Facility

Signature of Correctional Fociiity Officiol Dote

68




PURCHASE and SALE AGREEMENT

of Sugust, 2025 by and between Palarat Pattanesuan, of
herainaftter referred 1o as the “Selisr”, and Wikanda
herainafter referred to as the "Buyer”.

“Ootinjak, of

Saller agraos to sell and Buyver agrees to buy thal carzin restaurant busingss kaewn as “Bangkok Spice
Thai Restavrant”, hereinafier referred fo as the "Restaurant”, located at 76 Haven Street, Reading,
bMassachusetits.

Sale shall consist of everything located at and currently being used in the operation of the restaurant,
including all aguipment, fixtures, ovens, grills, rainge hoods and vertilation aguipmant, sinks,
dishwashers, cash regieters, air conditioners, fans, credit sard processing equipment, pots, pans, bowis,
dishes, flatware, paper and plastic goods, table settings and decorations, wail art, signs, clocks,
telephone numbers used for the business, websites, sccial media, the pams “Bangkok Spice Tha
Festaurant”, el canned, packaged and perishable food ai the Restaurant on the day of closing, and the
good will of the business.,

Sale price is One Hundred Twenly-Five Thousand Doliare (§ 125,000.00), payable ag follows:
3 i- Dw~ W at the time of execution of this Purchase and Sale Agreement, and

$ [BLﬁ ! GO, at closing.

Closing shall take place at 9 o'clock AM on Oclober 1, 2025 at the Restavrant, or such other time, date
and location as may be agreed to by the Parties.

Purchase is subject to the following:

1. Buyer hae obisined approval for the transfer of all lcenses and permits from the Town of Reading
and the Commoenwsalth of Massachusets, including license {o sell beer and wine at the

establishment, from the Seller,
2. Buyer enters into a lease with the current landlord.

Heller shail maintain the premises and operate the Restaurant from the date of execution of this
Agreement until the closing date on the same schedule, siriving 1o continue the income siream 1o the
business as has bheen realized in the current market environment,

Date: gkwglﬁ( j{ff;‘t?ﬂ%m

Palarat Pattanesuan

4

ey (ol
MK b odp { T 7(&? o i

ey

os/iles

Diates;

Wikanda Cottajak

69









CHAS E o Septamber 13, 2025 through September 30, 3025

JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA. ‘
B O Box 182081 ACtount Number:

Colurpbus, OH 43218 - 2051

CUSTOMER SERVICE INFORMATION

Wob site; Chase.com
Sarvice Canter 1~-800-242-7338
. Pere Espanot 1-688-522-4273
BANGKOK SPICE LLC Intermational Calis: 1-713-262-16879
76 HAVEN ST We acces! operalor refay calls
READNNG MA 01367-2929
SAVINGS SUMMARY Chase Business Total Savinge
INGTANGES AMOUNY
Beginning Balance $0.00
Deposits and Additions 2 120,000.52
Ending Balance 2 $120,000.52
Annual Percentage Yield Earned This Period 0.01%
Interest Paid This Peried 5052
Interest Paid Yaar-to-Date 80.52
TRANSACTION DETAIL
LATE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT BALANCE
Beginning Balance %£0.00
0315 Grine Trarsiar From crk I F0,000.00____120,000.00
OYa0 Interest Payrment .52 120,000.52
Ending Balance £120,000.52

15 depostted ttems are provided with your account each month. There is a $0.40 tee for sach additional deposiled itom.

Page 1 of 2
¥ 72




Docusign Envelope iD: 0C44C603-A813-4F 1E-BFD1-921825F2C6BE

Colombo, O’ Leary & Colombo Realty Trust
70 Haven Street
Reading, MA 01867

Re: Letter of Intent to Lease 76 Haven Street, Reading, MA

Dear Sit or Madam:

This Letter of Intent (“LOT") sets forth the principal terms under which Bangkok Spice,
LLC (*Lessec™) proposes to enter into a lease of commercial space owned by Colombo,
O'Leary & Columbo Realty Trust (“Landlord™). While the parties intend this LOI as an

expression of mutual intent, except as specifically stated herein, it is non-binding and
subject to the negotiation and execation of & mutually acceptable lease agreement.

1. Premises

Approximately 884 square feet of comimercial space located at 76 Haven Street, Reading,
Massachusetts (“Premises™). The intended use 1s for a Thai restaurant.

2. Term

Five {5) years, commencing on or about November 1, 2025 and ending October 31, 2030,

3. Base Rent
Leasc Year Monthiy Rent
Year 1 £1,800.00
Year 2 $1,800.00
Year 3 $1.850.00
Year 4 $1,900.00
Year 5 $1,950.00

Rent shall be payable monthly in advance on the first day of each month.

4, Utilities

Lessee shall pay all utilities serving the Premises that are separately metered.
5. Contingencies

This LOI and any resulting lease shall be expressly contingent upon:
{a) Lessee’s purchase of the assets of Bangkok Spice Restaurant from the current owner;




Docusign Envelope 1D: 0C44C6D3-A813-4F1E-BFD1-921825F2C6BE

and
{b) Lessee’s successtul receipt of the transfer of (i) the Wine and Beer License and (ii)
the Common Victualler License from the Town of Reading, Massachusetts.

6. Lease Form

The lease shall be on a form mutually agreeable to both parties and shall contain terms
and conditions customary for comparable commercial properties in Reading,
Massachuselts,

7. Good Faith Negotiations / Confidentiality

The parties agree to negotiate the lease in good faith. The parties also agree to keep the
terms of this LOI confidential except as needed to consummate the transaction.

8. Non-Binding Effect

Except for any provisions relating to confidentiality, exclusivity, or any deposit expressly
described herein, this LOT does not create a binding obligation {o lease the Premises.
Neither party shall be bound unless and until a definitive lease is executed and delivered
by both parties.

Please indicate your agreement with these terms by signing below and returning a copy to
me by Ociober 5, 2025.

We look forward to working together on this exciling oppertunity.

Sincerely,
Bangkok Spice, LLC

Signed by:

Mitanda Boffajae

::::::

By: Wikanda Oottajak, Manager

Agreed and Accepted:

74




Pt ole. <o O |
P HawEm T, FREAnsTE, A

”

g’r“ﬁ' T ap® v et

/1
¢
=
=
=
3
' ,a/)s%m*
s
T
iy

!
&
.
A
-
-

m — = =
ey F’”u‘lﬁ“g’“ EA‘
Moot = i

Ei x9N
-
e—*ﬂ‘__s

P frie ««wzm




LEGAL NOTICE

TOWN OF READING — SELECT BOARD
PUBLIC HEARING

Please take notice that the Reading Sclect Board, acting as the Local Licensing Authority
under M.G.L. Chapter 138, will hold a public hearing on ,at

in the Select Board Meeting Room, Reading Town Hall, 16
Lowell Street, Reading, Massachusetts, to act on the following application:

e Application for Transfer of Wine and Malt Beverages License (Restaurant}

An application has been made by Bangkok Spice, LLC for the transfer of the Wine and
Malt Beverages Restaurant License currently held by Palarat Pattanesvan, doing business
as Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant, located at 76 Haven Street, Reading, MA 01867.

The proposed transfer seeks approval of the change in licensee from the current holder,
Palarat Pattanesvan d/b/a Bangkok Spice Thai Restaurant, to the new entity, Bangkok
Spice, L1L.C, at the same premises.

All interested parties are invited to attend the hearing or may submit their comments in
writing to the Town Manager’s Office, Town Hall, 16 Lowell Street, Reading, MA
01867, or by email to townmanager@ci.reading.ma.us prior to the hearing,

By order of the Reading Select Board
Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Dated: 2025

76



gy : INCORY o 4

Town of Reading
16 Lowell Street
Reading, MA 01867-2685

Procurement Office Office: (781) 942-6696
Website: www.readingma.gov

To: Matt Kraunelis, Town Manager

From: Katie Gabriello, Director of Operations
Date: Cctober 30, 2025

RE: Potential use of the Pleasant Street Center

Following our recent conversation, please see the below for procurement options for the sale or rental
of the Pleasant Street Center. I've included the commercial appraisal and the slides presented at Special
Town Meeting on potential usage options as references.

Per MGL 30B, section 16, the sale or lease of the Pleasant Stret Center falls under disposition of Real
Property.

The steps the town must take include:

1. Determine the value of the property. (Complete; commercial appraisal performed in November
of 2024 valued the property at $965,000.)

2. Declare the property available for disposition.

3. With a value of more than $35,000, the Town must engage in competitive solicitation to
determine the usage of the PSC,

a. This includes advertising requirements and time frames as is typical with any
procurement.

4. |If the value of the property exceeds $35,000, proposals to dispose of the property must be
solicited. The requirement for competition is triggered by the value of the property, not the
price the local jurisdiction expects to receive for the property. If the town is leasing space, the
value of the disposition is determined by calculating the fair market value of the lease over the
entire contract term. For example, if a portion of a municipal building is leased for five years
with a market value of $1,000 per month, the entire contract is valued at $60,000.

5. Therefore, it must be awarded using an advertised solicitation process. In assessing whether and
how to dispose of surplus property, consider both current and possible future needs. It is hest

77



to be systematic. Develop an inventory of the local jurisdiction’s property, survey department
heads and invite public comment. If it is found that the local jurisdiction might need the

property in the future, be sure to structure a lease term so that the property is available for use
when needed.

With adhering to MGL 30B for Real property disposition, the Town has significant flexibility in how we
handle this valuable asset. Through the structure of an RFP, we're able to favor proposals that will serve
Reading residents best, whether that be in terms of a highest dollar value for sale or lease, or a
community-centered service, such as sale or lease to a non-profit organization.

Beginning this winter, we plan to formulate a community needs assessment. This will involve soliciting
feedback on needs from department heads, a road show to applicable town boards, a town-wide

survey, among other communication methods, leaving ample time for Select Board updates in February
leading up to Annual Town Meeting.

Please note, there are two situations in which competitive solicitation requirements are waived:

s The rental of residential property to qualified tenants by a housing authority or a community
development authority

s Between governmental bodies and the federal government, the commonwealth or any of its
political subdivisions or another state or palitical subdivision

I'm currently in touch with our legal team about the final decision body in terms, and hope to have that
update soon. Please let me know if you require additional information.

78



PLINLMOY AISUET] = £

‘'sailigissod jusuwdo)aaapal 01 81piny e ag Aewl Yyaiym
‘(eouerioduwil 1800] JO) ANSISaY O1I01SIH SN9SNYOJBSSEIA U1 UQD

‘Juswialinbal
10] Wnwiuiw 1004 aienbs 0000y 24l JO MOYS Skl ‘193)
alenbs z1Gcz 18 1Ing ‘8u0z Oy Aliluied4-11NjA € Ul pa1ed0] 81IS .

(swoou| suneradQ 19N) £8£°2L$ 1€11US1I0d SWOIU| Je1UsY .
000°G96$ 1k 1esieiddy 1e1oJaWWo) .

'198) 81enbS QZE ‘v S| Baly SUIAIT PBUSIUIH

SIOBIOIN0O

19)U90) 198.11S JUESed|d /:




08

SIE3A 21MINg 10J UOILRIEISE PMIOUI 10U OP SI3LINU 3L 4

pSr'T vy LT $921A195 Suluea)n jel0]
LTF 000°s sanddng 1eIpoisny
LED'T ovPTl DES X SHM ZG X SAeP g X siug JaueD (1)
saljddng je1poisnn) » sedalog Suluea)n

e’y LTT‘8S 1810] puels
STP'T G/6°0T salpn L0l
£6 PIT1 19MIG 9 10IBAA
214 v’ se0) |eInieN
208 LIF0T 1500 AHo110913
€0ET ¥£9°L¢C aougUlUIEl g SIledaY 1eucIpPY
9zI'T 60G‘ST SIIIAIDS DDUBLUINIIR]Y SAIIUSADL 1010)
16 G19 S2UBUSIUIE JOIRIAUBD
- - Buiysiuliay 10014 WAD
- - aauBUalUIRLY aAljRIUAAS4 SOOH Jayoralg
ST 081 sdel] asealg uirIg g dung
£6 0ZT'1 $35IAI9G JUDWSBeuey 152d
992 BT suoiloadsu) 21215 R aourUaIUIR AJYIUOK 1018AS]
9T 000°C (Sunds 8 N1eq) Sa01M3S Wd DVAH
=T 00S°1T 104100 OYAH
8¢ oSy $32IA13G Japjuldg
- - S80IAIBS S1EWSYD JBIBAA
£e (1]0)74 (suoissaiddng 9 siaysinguyxd) saaiaiag Wawdinby ai4
9z Zie Bul103IUD LUIRYY 3114 B J2181ng
e A S5/T (2.em110S 3 SWIBY I00( ‘SEJIAWED) WB)Y 1813INg
£8 000°1 {1224 J1ad X ©) S991A8S WIBTY 2414
1509 fAjauop 1507 jenuuy SaJIAleg aaURUDIUIR] DAIIRIUAASI]

1509 aoueudjuie|y paioalold 1ajuad 101Uag

SIOPUBA 2SIl
Buuea)) 924n0SIND

Suipeay Jo umo)
puUgBUDIEN
aiNd

S1oNpoid 1amogd
SIoUUCH fln

Aassnp

uiesq g dwing sa1nes
123IWBYD WellEM
Qaiquiz

JETIECER

nauing

aiid uojsog

Asuing

aloaug

S1¥Y

widlaauc)

SOl
lopuap



RESTRICTED APPRAISAL

49 PLEASANT STREET
READING, MA 01867

PREPARED FOR:

Town of Reading, MA

C/0 MR. MATTHEW KRAUNELIS
49 PLEASANT STREET
READING, MA 01867

81




LIANT VALUATIONS

Commercial Real Estate Appraisers

www.brostoncommercialappraisers.com

(617) 326-3445
April 29, 2025

Town of Reading, MA

c/o Mr. Matthew Kraunelis
49 Pleasant Street
Reading, MA 01867

Re: 49 Pleasant Street
Reading, MA 01867
Qur File No. 031820251711

Dear Mr. Kraunelis,

Pursuant to your request, we have prepared an opinion of the market value of the fee simple
estate of the subject property. The property is situated on the southeast corner of Pleasant and
Parker Streets, in the Town of Reading, Middlesex County, State of Massachusetts. The property
is designated on the Middlesex County tax maps as APN# READ-000022-000000-000020.

The subject is comprised of a 22,651+ square foot (0.52 acre) parcel of A40-zoned-land,
currently improved with a two-story plus finished basement support area (2, /60+ square feet),
elevator serviced professional office building, containing 4,832+ square feet of above grade
gross building area, originally constructed circa 1850, with a fand to building ratio of 4.69:1.00,
and adequate on-site parking for approximately 28 automobiles.

As of our effective date of value, the subject was fully owner occupied and in average overall
condition, utilized as a historic municipal/senior center, with a full kitchen, multiple lavatories
and a diesel backup generator.

Public records mdicate that the subject 1s currently owned by the Town of Reading; there have been
no arm’s length transfers of the property in the prior five years. Our effective valuation date is April
16, 2025, the date of our inspection of the property; the subject is reportedly not under contract of sale;
nor 1s it being offered for sale, to the best of our knowledge.

82



RELIANT VALUATIONS
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS AND CONSULTANTS

Town of Readmg, MA
Page Two
April 29, 2025

The mtended use of the appraisal is expressly for market valuation purposes, with regards to
assisting our client with internal asset management and the intended user of this report is Town
of Reading, MA; this report may not be utilized by any other user or for any other use without
express written permission from the appraiser;, we are not responsible for unauthorized use of
this report.

This appraisal report was prepared in compliance with the requirements and standards of our
chient and conforms to the current Uniform Standards of Professtonal Appraisal Practice
(USPAP), as promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of the Appraisal Foundation, the
Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute.

In our valuation of the subject property, equal consideration was placed on the sales comparison
and income capitalization approaches; the cost approach was deemed to be not applicable to the

valuation of the subject property.

We are of the opinton that the market value of the fee simple estate of the subject property, as of
April 16, 2025, was:

NINE HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS
($965,000.00)

Very truly yours,

RELIANT VALUATIONS

Brian C. Donegan

Associate Member, Appraisal Institute
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Massachusetts Certificate #1000335

83



CERTIFICATION

Premises: 49 Pleasant Street
Reading, MA 01867

[, Brian C. Donegan, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief:
THAT, the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct;

THAT, the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting
conditions, and are my personal, impartial and unbiased professional analyses, opinions and conclusions;

THAT, I have no present or prospective inferest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I have no
personal interest with tespect to the parties involved;

THAT, I have not performed any services regarding the subject property within the three year period immediately
preceding the effective date of this assignment, as an appraiser or in any capacity;

THAT, I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this
assignment;

THAT, my engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results;

THAT, my compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of a
predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the
attainment of a stipulated result or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this
appraisal;

THAT, my analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity
with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP);

THAT, I have not made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report;

THAT, no one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person(s) signing this certification;

THAT, the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this Teport has been prepared, in
conformify with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice of the Appraisal Institute;

THAT, the use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly
authorized representatives;

THAT, as of the date of this reporf, Brian C. Donegan has completed the Standards and Ethics Education
Requiremenis for Candidates of the Appraisal Institute.

DATE; April 29, 2025

Brian C. Donegan

Associate Member, Appraisal Institute
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Massachusetts Certificate #1 000335

84



EXPOSURE TIME

Exposure fime 1s generally defined as 1) The time a property remains on the market. 2) An
opinion, based on supporting market data, of the length of time that the property interest being
appraised would have been offered on the market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at
market value on the effective date of the appraisal. (USPAP, 2020-2021 ed.).”!

The subject property consists of a well-located professional office property, in average overall
condition, with adequate on-site parking. Were the subject property available for sale, the estimated

marketing period is less than one year.

L 1e Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenih Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 67

85



APPRAISAL DEFINITIONS

Market Value

The most probable price, as of a specified date, in cash, or in terms ¢quivalent to cash, or in other
precisely revealed terms, for which the specified property rights should sell after reasonable exposure
in a competitive market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, with the buyer and seller each
acting prudently, knowledgeably, and for self-interest, and assuming that neither is under undue
duress.” Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the

passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby:
« Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

» Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own
best interests;

» A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

¢ Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or im terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and

» The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or

creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale” (12
C.FR. Part 34.42(g); 55 Federal Register 34696, August 24, 1990, as amended at 57
Federal Register 12202, Apnil 9, 1992; 59 Federal Register 29499, June 7, 1994.)”

1. Market value is described, not defined in the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP) as follows: A type of value, stated as an opinion, that
presumes the transfer of a property (i.e., a right of ownership or a bundle of such
rights), as of a certain date, under specific conditions set forth in the definition of the

term identified by the appraiser as applicable in an appraisal.”

Fee Simple Estate 3

“Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to the
limitations imposed by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, police power, and

escheat.”

2 he Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenih Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 118.
3 he Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenith Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 73.

86



Intended Use *

1. “The valuer’s intent as to how the report will be used. (SVP)”

2. “The use(s) of an appraiser’s reported appraisal or appraisal review assignment results, as
identified by the appraiser based on communication with the client at the time of the assignment.
(USPAP, 2020-2021 ed.).”

Intended User i

“1. The party or parties the valuer intends will use the report. (SVP)
2. The client and any other party as identified, by name or type, as users of the appratsal or
appraisal review report by the appraiser based on communication with the client at the time of the

assignment. (USPAP, 2020-2021 ed.)”

Restricted Appraisal Report 6

“A written report prepared under Standards Rule 2-2(b), 8-2(b) or 10-2(b) of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. (2016-2017 ed.)”. As such, the report may not include
all of the supporting documentation provided in full appraisal reports, but this information is retained

in our work files.

4

The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenrh Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 87
S The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenih Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 98
6 The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal — Sevenih Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL, 2022, p. 165

87



10.

1.

12.

13.

UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS AND
LIMITING AND QUALIFYING CONDITIONS

This report is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(b) and
Standards Rule 1-4 of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) for a restricted
appraisal report. As such, it might not include full discussions of the data, reasoning and analyses that were
used in the appraisal process to develop our opinion of value. The information contained in this report is
specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use stated in this report. We are not responsible for
any unauthorized use of this report.

No responsibility is assumed for legal or title considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good
and marketable unless stated otherwise in this report.

The property was appraised free and clear of any or all liens and encumbrances unless stated otherwise in
this report.

Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed unless stated otherwise in this
report.

The information furnished by others for the appraised property is believed to be reliable. However, no
warranty is given for its accuracy.

All engineering is assumed to be correct. Any plot plans and illustrative material in this report are included
only 1o assist the reader in visualizing the property.

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unappareni conditions of the property, subseil or situctures that
render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for arranging for
engineering studies that may be required fo discover them,

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental
regulations and laws unless stated otherwise in this report.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been complied with, unless
a nonconformity has been stated, defined and considered in this report.

It is assumed that all required licenses, Certificates of Occupancy or other legislative or administrative
authority from any local, state or national government or private entity have been or can be obtfained or
renewed for any use on which the value estimates contained in this report are based.

Any sketch in this report may show approximate dimensions and is included to assist the reader in
visualizing the property. Maps and exhibiis found in this report are provided for reader reference purposes
only. No guarantee as to accuracy is expressed or implied unless stated otherwise in this report. No survey
has been made for the purpose of this report.

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries or property lines of
the property described, and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless stated otherwise in this report.

We are unaware of any easememnts or encumbrances that substantially impact the subject property.
However, we have not been provided with a title report and if in the event such report detailed the existence
of an otherwise unknown easement or encumbrance, the value conclusion contained herein may be subject
to change.

88



14.

15.

t6.

17.

18.

19.

20.

We are not qualified to detect hazardous waste and/or toxic materials. Any comment by us that might
suggest the possibility of the presence of such substances should not be taken as confirmation of the
presence of hazardous waste and/or {oxic materials. Such determination would require investigation by a
qualified expert in the field of environmenial assessment. The presence of substances such as asbestos,
urea-formaldehyde foam insulation or other poientially hazardous materials may affect the value of the
property. Our value estimate(s) is predicaied on the assumption that there is no such material on or in the
property that would cause a loss in value unless stated otherwise in this report. No responsibility is
assumed for any environmental conditions or any expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover
them. Our descriptions and comments are the result of our routine observations made during the appraisal
process.

Unless stated otherwise in this report, the subject property was appraised without a specific compliance
survey having been conducted to determine whether the property is or is not in conformance with the
tequiretnents of the Americans with Disabilitiecs Act (ADA)., The presence of architectural and
commumnications barriers that are structural in nature that would restrict access by disabled individuals may
adversely affect the property's value, marketability or utility.

Any proposed improvements are assumed to be completed in a good and workmanlike manner in
accordance with the submitted plans and specifications, and conforming to all municipal, building and
health codes.

Our value conclusions were based on the assumption that the subject property will continue to be
adequately maintained and professionally managed to sustain its competitiveness in the marketplace.

The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements applies only
under the stated program of utilization. The separate allocations for land and buildings must not be used in
conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. If may not be
used for any purpose by any person other than the party 1o whom it is addressed without the written consent
of the appraiser(s), and in any event, only with properly written qualification and only in ifs entirety.

Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of
the appraiser(s) or the firm with which the appraiser(s) is/are connected) shall be disseminated to the public
through advertising, public relations, news sales or other media without the prior written consent and
approval of the appraiser(s).

89



LOCAL AREA MAP

(’};:mp Curtis;,
Buikd Meti
Guard Ras

49 Pleasant 5, Rzad 9, ... X ]
49 Pleasant St
) Reading, MA 01867

10

80



PARCEL MAP

v 0, BE2UC

B

TR miod

By
AR

sk . LESM esugk UK

-

BEDN 9YaR LM ook

911K : Lo ;
o BTSN EISK TROR S AR
_ ' FLaK

g BOIK ey
; TIBK gyme by
A =ty

FEHR

511K

SIK

AT

GIEK  7EGRY 1.oM

cAT.

11

el



ZONING MAP

WAKEFIELD

Zoning District Abbreviations

Dhistiict Mame Type
Single: Family 15 District Reasidence
S20 Single Family 20 District Residence
? 4 840 Single Fasity 40 Distict Residence
gt f A4D Apanment 40 District Residenice
*See addenda for A40 Zoning Permitted Uses
12

g2



INCOME CAPITALIZATION ANALYSIS

Comparable Rentals

. 2024 Bap 2024 2 Haven 5 Raading 2nd .08 o B2228 NN
Db 21024 Whar 201249 L Ay Bt Regaading 2wl 25050 B13.850

Feb 2024 Miar 2524 £74 Main 8t | Framing 2 2028 F18.00 +ITI.
Fod 20024 e 224 123 Haven Bt Reaading 2nd 4,300 FALED- NN

*We have projected a $20.00 per square foot, per annum, net rent for the subject, whereby the
tenant (s) pay base rent, all risk insurance, electricity and a pro-rata share of real estate taxes.

Middlesex County Comparable Capitalization Rates

Addraes ity Blate Sule Date Sele Brize Eilae (BF) Price/EF HActusl Cap Raie
¥23 Cartral 1. 2wl [XES PR B A GEN
TR Aderrimach Bt [REDH) pMEN TIARS024 Fa0.8¢ [cXelg
Tt Edlon fva R S [RES 7

48T Grbon P HNES G4
2RGW-VETG Massachussts A [EE3 &nn
TR Wy St Rk LT JNEY Pk
TS Nidrlmaent Tpks e 1A% N
2349 Meszactuseily Ave Campiilge A X
Wo1-267 Musanchuostts Ao L snaniizlon LA P
1 Hoslon Post Fid Il pXES [ixs
1y Mk Piz hielsss 14 657
24 Dragcant St Walihan (e T
588 Midracere 5 L [SES B
587 Wiy St I. it 14 LK) 600

13

a3



DIRECT CAPITALIZATION ANALYSIS

Amount 5q. Ft.
$96,640 $20.00

5.0% (34.832) (31.00}
$91.808 $519.00

3 Amount
$4,832
$6,040
$4.832

$966
$19,425

$72,383 $14 .98
7.50%
$965,111 $199.73
$965,000 £199.71
$199.73
9.99
21.16%

i4



56

€1
000°5968  popunoy
00F 996% SNBA 1IN PR1ETPU]
374 vaD
00°00T% W ‘bgrenges
IT'81% aguex 85°STT$ aBuex
0L 10T$ ueaw IS'RICS uedw
69°012$ xew TIE8TY  xew
85'7618 apm FSLOTS  umm
playaem
839615 011 00T S0'1 S0'1 00’1 LSBLIS 00T LSBLIS  8UF 0TL9  OSL8T  00000TTS  €TOTALAG pEO BL 71
Burpey
85T6T$ cr'l 001 Ol'l Ol'1 S50 PCLOTE 00T PSL91 T8 PLIPT  966°€k  QO0'0SOTS  TTOT/BI/I 13318 U 1.7
playafe
SU'90C$ 80 080 So'l 001 o'l 10928 001 [ooves vle L60°0 99161 00666V 1S FTOTHT/L 192015 IR ThF
Furpea] THON
69°01C% FLO §L°0 060 S0'1 SO'1 TUERTE 00T TIE8TE 199 0956 SS8TT9 0000SYTE  STOT/LTA 12an§ PIOJUOTYRY
dupen]
69t ERF  IS9CT Ppang juesead ¢

SISATTVNV NOSIIVJdINOD SATVS




COMPARABLE SALES MAP

5B Concord St, North Re... X
S& Concord St
North Reading, MA 01864

Wilchwood
Cemetery

Calﬁpﬁcurtis
Guild Nt
Guard Res

) HUSETTS
g *Lynnfield
L

»

5,

49 Pleasant St, Reading, ...
49 Pleasant 5t
Reading, Mo 01867

Puritan Lawry,
Cemetery

274 Main St
Reading, Ma 01567

i

442 \Water St, Waksfield, . . X
M2 Water St

Wakefield, Ma 01380

240

St Pettricks
Cometery £

16

86



COMPARABLE SALES PHOTOGRAPHS

R |

442 Water Street. Wakefield

17

a7



COMPARABLE SALES PHOTOGRAPHS (Continued)

12 Teal Road, Wakefield

1%

a8



ADDENDA
-A440 Zoning Permitted Uses
-CoStar Submarket Report

-Subject Photographs

19

89



Town of Readng Zariing Bykaw Use Requtiabans

ACCESSORY USES BUS BUS BUS IND PUD-B PUD-I
A B < Qverlay | Overlay

Comrmercial Automotive Repair or Mo No Nao No No Mo
Service Station
Praservation of a Carriage House, Yes No Na No SPP Mo
Stable, or Barn for Use as a Detached
Accessory Apartment
Beacon No No No No No Mo

Notas:

[y

= WM

Townhouse style Multi-Family Dwelling only in Business C Planning Subdistrict A.
Permitted only in Business C Planning Subdistricts B and D.

Requires on-site garage for all vehicles and enclosed storage for all materials.
The total number of children under age sixteen (16) in a family child care home shall

not exceed ten (10), including participating children living in the residence.

[*.3

Except by a contractor perfarming construction work on the premises.

& Also allowed by MSPR in the Downtown Smart Growth District {40R Overlay). Not
applicable to Home Occupation or Special Home Gccupation uses in any district.

53.2 Table of Uses for Residence Districts
PRINCIPAL USES RES RES RES PRD-G PUD-R
5-15 A-40 A-80 PRD-M
8-20
5-40
Residential Uses
Single Family Dwelling Yes Yes No SPP SPP
Two Family Dwelling Ng t Yes Mo SPP SPP
| Multi-family Dwelling No Yes Yes SPP SPP
| Age Restricted Multi-family Dwelling No SPP SPP SPP SPP
Boarding House No Yes No No No
Public and Institutional Uses
Child Care Facility Yes Yas Yes Yes Yes.
Religious or Educational Use Eligible for the Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Protection of Massachusetts General Laws
Chapter 40A Section 3
Qther Religious or Educational Use SPP N No SPP No
Medical Facility Noe SPP No No Ne
Mursirig Home SPP SPP No No SPP
Assisted Living Facility or Senior Independent | SPP SPP No spp SPP
Living Facility
MNon-Profit Philanthropic Institution or Cultural | SPP SPP SPP MNe SPP
Facility
Civic or Private Club SPA SPA SPA No No
Cormmunity Center Neo SPP SPP SPP SPP
QOther Uses
Public Utilities Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Agriculture Use Eligible for the Protection of Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A
Section 3
Other Agriculture Use SPP SPP SFP SPP SPP

Prage | 31

Fanitg Bylaw — Noveraber 2004
100



Town of Readng Zariing Bykaw Use Requtiabans
PRINCIPAL USES RES RES RES PRD-G PUD~R
S5-195 A-30 A-80 PRD-M
5-20
5-40
Structures Accessory te Agriculture Use Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Eligible for the Protection of Massachusetts
General Laws Chapter 40A Section 3
Personal Wireless Sarvice Facility {(PWSFE) 5PP SPpP SPP sSpPp SPP
ACCESSORY USES RES RES RES PRD-G PUD-R
£-15 A-40 A-8D PRD-M
5-20
£-40
Agriculture Use Eligible for the Protection of Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 404
Section 3
Other Agriculture Use SPP SPP SPP SPP SPP
Structures Accessory to Permitted Agriculture | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Use
Roadside Stand Yes Yas Yes Yes Yes
Marijuana Establishment No No No No Na
Attached Accessory Apartment Contained Yes Yes No No No
Within an Existing Single family Dwelling ~ no
addition to gross floor area
Preservation of a Carriage House, Stable, or SPA SPA SPA Mo No
Barn for Use as a Detached Accesscry
Apartment
Detached Accessory Apartment (not in an SPa SPA No Mo Ne
aexisting Carriage House, Stable or Barn)
Associated with New Construction of 2 Single
Family Dwelling
Attached Accessory Apartment Contained SFA SPA No Nao Ne
Within New Construction of or Addition to a
Single Family Dwelling
Home Occupation Yas Yes Yes Yes Yes
Speclal Home Qccupation SPP SPP SPP SPP SPP
Bed and Breakfast SPP spp spp SPP spp
Family Child Cara Home 2 Yes Yas Yes Yas Yes
Service Facility or Accessory Building Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Providing Enclosed Storage
Storage of commerciat building materials, No No No No Ne
eqguipment, or vehicles over 10,000 pounds ?
Storage of commercial landscaping No No No No Ne
equipment, materials, supplies, and/or
commercial vehicles over 10,000 pounds
Accessory Convenience Store No No No No SPP
Commercial Automotive Repair or Service No No No No No
| Station
Accessory Retail Services or Retail Store No MNo No No SPP
Animal Kennel No Ne Ne No Nog
Outdoor Cornmerce, Dining, Proegramming, or | MSPR MSPR MSPR ' [»] No

Storage*

Prage | 32

Fanitg Bylaw — Noveraber 2004
101



Wilmington/Reading

Sostan - MA USA

PREFPARED BY

Brian Donegan

&
Sr. Appraiser Q‘:" C OSt ar

102



OFFICE SUBMARKET REPORT

Submarket Key Statistics
Leasing

Rent

Construction

Sales

Sales Past 12 Months
Supply & Demand Trends
Rent & Vacanoy

Sale Trends

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals -

O‘ : CoStar



Overview

12 Mo Deliveries in SF 12 Mo Net Absorption in SF Vacancy Rate Market Asking Rent Growth
% 1.1%

0 64 .3K 5.1% 1%

The Wilmington/Reading office submarket has a vacancy averaged 300,600 SF of under construction inventory

rate of 5.1% as of the second quarter of 2025. Over the over the past 10 years.

past year, the submarket's vacancy rate has changed by

-1.6%, a result of no net delivered space and 64,000 SF Wilmington/Reading contains 4.0 million SF of inventory,

of net absorption. compared to 385 million SF of inventory metro wide.

Wilmington/Reading's vacancy rate of 5.1% compares to Average rents in Wilmington/Reading are roughly

the submarket's five-year average of 6.1% and the 10- $28.00/SF, compared to the wider Boston market

year average of 5.9%. average of $42.00/SF.

The Wilmington/Reading office submarket has roughly Rents have changed by 1.1% year over year in

260,000 SF of space listed as available, for an Wilmington/Reading, compared to a change of

availahility rate of 6.5%. As of the second quarter of 0.2% metro wide. Annual rent growth of 1.1% in

2025, there is no office space under construction in Wilmington/Reading compares to the submarket's five-

Wilmington/Reading. In comparison, the submarket has year average of 1.9% and its 10-year average of 2.7%.

KEY INDICATORS

Market Asking Under

Current Quarter RBA Vacancy Rate Rent Availability Rate Net Ab;lczlrption Deliveries SF Construction
4 & 5 Star 973,000 0% $31.83 0% ¢ 0 0
3 Star 2,221,331 8.8% $27.37 11.5% {2,200} 0 0
18& 2 Star 832,123 0.8% $24 .40 0.8% 650 0 0

Annual Trends 12 Month nggs:l ;?:reer;agit Peak When Trough When

Vacancy -1.6% (YOY) 7.8% 5.4% 23.3% 2007 QA 2.5% 2000 Q3
Net Abseorption SF 64.3K 50,227 836 858,724 2020 Q4 (288,658) 2006 Q3
Deliveries SF 0 55,780 242 1,030,796 2020 Q4 o 2025 Q1
Market Asking Rent Growth 1.1% 1.6% 1.5% 16.1% 2000 Q4 -12.0% 2002 Q1
Sales Volume $4.9M $21.6M N/A $110.4M 2016 Q3 50 2010 Q3

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "" CoStar- 194 Page2



Leasing

NET ABSORPTION, NET DELIVERIES & VACANCY

0
1,200 !Forecast 16%
g
L 1,000 E C14%
923 4
i i
= 800 ; 12%
g :
£ 800 : 10%
B 400 i 8% i
& ] s i i z
= . , i 2 Ll
iy & ! i § "
20@ w’ilc W ol ! MW‘“WHM'“WWWW 6‘%
r::: ~ I;LH"*‘ Y w“l‘ | ""‘E“W T ‘%M"“‘memm 0
“ 0 E 4%
200 E 2%
t
_4\ O Q Rl sl ﬂ Fronsatiocnsnd: I Lokond: I (. N | l Lok ool ! N | I g L i Frasecdlasands J Foccabosmnd i\ | | ! [ | 0 %

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2026 2026 2027 2028

M Met Absorption B Net Deliveries I “Yacancy Boston Vacancy
VACANCY RATE
18% ;
i i Forecast
16% i
]
I
14% !
I
i
12% {
I
10% i
g, ot B
m%”‘éw“‘“’“ww e T
8% i B
I
&% A i o
MM“‘“WW@MMW MMMWW%"WWMMWMW
4% g
i
2% i e,
I st iy
@Wan;;iwlaa:rrn:rl|:xii:uur:Ml:::xxl M%n ,,,,,

2018 u 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2028 2027 2028

o Wikmington/Reading 3 Star W wWilmington/Reading 4-5 Star il Wilmington/Reading " Boston

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - 472912025

.
119411 "‘[: CoStar- 105 Pages



Leasing

AVAILABILITY RATE

20%
18%

16%
14%

12% = | ”““’W'
‘ S _MMWM \
0w “‘”«%/ ﬁ
i

8%
N

B84, I I s M \WW”WMWMMM
° S
4%,
o, | I i ; ] | \ i i i 1 I i i § | I i i ; I i i ] i
2% J ! J

2018 2020 2021 2027 2023 2024

m Wikvdngton/Reading 3 Star M Wilmington/Reading Boslon

3 STAR MOST ACTIVE BUILDINGS IN SUBMARKET - PAST 12 MONTHS

Property Name/Address Rating RBA Deals Leased SF 12 Mo Vacancy 12 Mo Net Absorp SF
Building 1 .
200 Ballardvale St W H K 341,215 2 28,102 8.3% 66.948
187 Baliardvale St .
e d & d o @ 105,199 1 7,831 13.5% 3,087
64 C
eneere S Yo A g 30.200 1 6,589 8.7% 2.100
The Perkins Bldg ) .
125-131 Main St r -8 & 21,999 3 1,900 16% 862
300 Ball .
eleravate S & deod @ 115987 2 7,194 0.4% (409)
230 L .
el St L - 24.000 1 1,913 1.2% (747
226 L
el St L8 & 52,193 1 1,640 2.1% (1,265)
580 Mai
st Lo & 20,000 1 1,173 5.0% (1.800)
4/28/2025

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ".
119411 "‘[‘ CoStar- 106 Pages



Rent

MARKET ASKING RENT GROWTH (YOY)

12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%
2%
4%
6%

'B‘WG R SR S (RO [NRUU SN SN IO SN NN SRR (NN SO [N WO WU AN (NN NN (NSO RSN SN SOONUOY. OO NN S O NN USRS SN O YRR SRR SR (U SO NN NN N SO |
i | I Ll ] L) Ll 1 v L]

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 20286 2027 2028

Forecast

M%%
%

s

g
I
I
I
I
I
X
1
I
I
¥
I
I
I
I
I
3

I
|
|
1
|
|
1
|
|

m Wikmington/Reading 3 Star W Wilmingten/Reading 4-5 Star i WWilrington/Reading Boston

MARKET ASKING RENT PER SQUARE FEET

345 Forecast

$40

>3 T WWMMMrM

30

e

El g
st
WWWMWWW o
T

T

MMM

L

wmmmwlv’“‘www

e

$25 MM’”‘WUMMMMWW o -

pm——— M -

$20 1 1 1 [] i i i [ f f f [ i i [l [ f f f [ i i i [
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

e R T e R s al R ]
5 \& .

i} i} i ] ] ] ] i} i} i} — 1, ] ] i} i}
J J

o Wikmington/Reading 3 Star W wWilmington/Reading 4-5 Star il Wilmington/Reading " Boston

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - "' 4/28/2025
119411 "‘[‘ CoStar- 107 Pages



Construction

DELIVERIES & DEMOLITIONS

1,200 | Forecast

]

]

1,000 :

;

;

800‘ ;

" !

G 800 ;

‘g ]

3 ;

2 400 :

l'ﬁE ]

i

]

200 :

- |

i

0\ uuuuuu M m !

i

]
_20@?!:1{1fl:!11:!!‘[%01LillUl%:r‘!;lnlgijuj‘ll!illﬂ

2018 2020 20271 2022 20232 2024 20256 2026 2027 2028

m  Deliveries W Demolished B Net Deliveries

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - "' 4/28/2025
119411 "‘[‘ CoStar- 108 Pages



Construction

All-Time Annual Avg. Square Feet Delivered Square Feet Past 8 Qtrs Delivered Square Feet Next 8 Qirs

Proposed Square Feet Next 8 Qtrs

54,484

PAST 8 QUARTERS DELIVERIES, UNDER CONSTRUCTION, & PROPOSED

Tem;;izéby ry’

neoor g5
5 o - o
Ll Ty’ -

e

. SOUTH
.- TEWKSBURY

North Reading

Wilrrington

Lynnfield
PINEHURST
| e . e w&"ﬂw.%%
LY Heading e
& _:
% ’ Y ON '
‘%‘% : Burlington — DISTRICT
(el 13 v Cathpleted g Gl arte Wil et
BAPLEAL ik 7y Completed Past'd Quarters

PAST & FUTURE DELIVERIES IN SQUARE FEET

) Mld eton”

Water Park -
MNew knglar

e ]
sy m,ﬂm&ﬁ 3 %
nmygi@ﬁﬁ”(%‘ 7 %i

30,000 :
f Future
20,000
R T R i e T T T NWWYW m»mwwwwwmwmwmmmmw%»wmwmwwxwmwwwmwm&mwwwmwmwmewwwnmw L
10,000
T e i : , -
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Completed Past & Goarters o AIThre Average
© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "‘[‘ CoStar- 100 Page7



Construction

RECENT DELIVERIES

Property Name/Address
156 West St

Bldg SF Stories Start Complete  DeveloperfOwner

1

20,000 2

| Feb2023  Jan 2024

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - 472912025

.
119411 "‘[: CoStar- 110 Pages



Sales

Over the past year, 5 office properties traded in
Wilmington/Reading, accounting for 18,000 SF

of inventory turnover. Office sales volume in
Wilmington/Reading has totaled $4.9 million over the past
year. Average annual sales volume over the past five
years is $25.7 million and $35.7 million over the past 10
years.

SALES VOLUME & MARKET SALE PRICE PER SF

Estimated office market pricing in Wilmington/Reading is
$249/SF compared to the market average of $344/SF.
Average market pricing for Wilmington/Reading is
estimated at $434/SF for 4 & 5 Star properties, $199/SF
for 3 Star assets, and $165/SF for 1 & 2 Star buildings.
The estimated cap rate for Wilmington/Reading office is
8.0%, compared to the metro average of 7.9%.

3550 ! Forecast $80
1
$500 E $70
I
|
5450 i $60
& S i %)
@ 3400 g ' $50 @
. \“% E &
2 3350 M $40 3
!
%: $300 | N P ! £30 f:“fw
$250 ik T 800
I
1
$200 . B E $10
1
$1 50 sbayundiiid ik b UL, Do Mj (- EM Lok % boobisansh % bovodooed : Sovowdhasead ﬂ [ $0
2019 2020 2027 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
M Sales Molurne B Wilminglon/Reading Price/SF i Boston Price/SF
oStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Prope raisals - d 472912025
© 2025 CoStar Group - L dtﬂg;t”c | Property Appraisal "[: COS'EEIY ] 111 Pages




Sales

MARKET CAP RATE

8.5% .
1 Forecast
4] WM - 'MHMW‘WMJMW%‘M“M
8.0% MW""”WE“ a i,
M o ' . MM-M“'W- MWWMMU
1.5% M Mw’“ ! : %"“"'M%mm
o TN Vs : ~
) ? WWMHWWWW% %M“MW\MD“ M"WM W’“ : w“"mw
b, a / ]
6.5% o ™
LT _ p E MM“
8.0% = g
!
5.6% |
!
5.0% §
!
450& Jreerernhennenml : | S 5 I — : ) : A — : | A : : feeereeth E SN : S - = | | : (-
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
m Wikmington/Reading 3 Star W Wilmingten/Reading 4-5 Star i WWilrington/Reading Boston

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - 472912025

d
119411 "‘[: CoStar- 112 Pagsto



Sales Past 12 Months

Sale Comparables Avg. Cap Rate Avg. Price/SF Avg. Vacancy At Sale

5 - $263 5.9%

SALE COMPARABLE LOCATIONS

Tem;;izéby ry’

--Wr;atér Park, -

b Cowe £ v Newknglar
% Kid L ¥ Middleton™
how / i {5 % "
. SOUTH Y . ((
T TEWKSBUR ‘ . \ ,g,.’f . N
" : Notth Reading sy s \ S

PINEHURST

‘ .~
e L sl &
. TR A
- i

: COMMON
%ﬁ . Burlington S M) s DISTRICY
Googiete - saleCompatabies  Nakefiuld
SALE COMPARABLES SUMMARY STATISTICS
Sales Attributes Low Average Median High
Sale Price $280,000 $987,625 $695,000 $2,650,000
Price/SF $133 $263 $276 $453
Cap Rate - - - -
Time Since Sale in Months 1.4 6.3 7.8 10.1
Property Attributes Low Average Median High
Building SF 1,100 3,759 2,089 9,600
Stories 1 2 2 2
Typical Floor SF 1,026 2,199 1,971 4,800
Vacancy Rate At Sale 0% 5.9% 0% 100%
Year Built 1930 1954 1964
Star Rating .m % e w22

4/29/2025

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ".
LA CoStar- 113 Page1

119411



Sales Past 12 Months

RECENT SIGNIFICANT SALES

Property Sale
Property Name - Address Rating Yr Built Bldg SF Vacancy Sale Date Price Price/SF Cap Rate
58 Concord St
eneer dr & i & 4 1968 9,600 0%  3/17/2025 $2,650,000 $276 -
250 Main St
an b b d o 4 1930 2,052 0%  6/27/2024 $930,000 $453 -
500 Main St
ain dr b i o4 1939 3,942 0%  2/10/2025 $695,000 $176 -
170 Main St
ain b b i o4 1970 1100 100% | 7/8/2024 $383,124 $348 -
10 Church St
ure & i o op 1964 | 2,009 0% 9/5/2024 $280,000 $133 -

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "" CoStar- 114 Page12



Supply & Demand Trends

OVERALL SUPPLY & DEMAND

Inventory Net Absorption
Year SF SF Growth % Growth SF % of Inv Construction Ratio
2029 3,998,935 (5,402) -0.1% 7,969 0.2% -
2028 4,004,337 (6,147) -0.2% 27,683 0.7% -
2027 4,010,484 (6,462) -0.2% 3,465 0.1% -
2026 4,016,948 (6,402) -0.2% (21,328) -05% -
2025 4,023,348 (3,108) -0.1% (15,215) -04% -
YTD 4,026,454 0 0% 8,692 0.2% 0]
2024 4,026,454 20,000 3.5% 102,973 2.6% 0.2
2023 4,006,454 0 0% 75,338 1.9% 0]
2022 4,006,454 (1,200} 0% (208 892) -5.2% -
2021 4,007,654 0 0% 75,634 1.9% 0]
2020 4,007,654 1,030,796 34.6% 958,724 23.9% 1.1
2019 2,976,858 5,264 3.2% (72,688) -2.4% -
2018 2,971,594 0 0% 72,762 2.4% 0]
2017 2,971,594 0 0% (3,822) -01% -
2016 2,971,594 0 0% 38,280 1.3% 0]
2015 2,971,594 (30,0G0) -1.0% (15,119) -05% -
2014 3,001,594 0 0% (83,404 -1.8% -
2013 3,001,594 (5,000) -0.2% 15,101 0.5% -
4 & 5 STAR SUPPLY & DEMAND
Inventory Net Absorption
Year SF SF Growth % Growth SF % of Inv Construction Ratio
2029 974,354 1,058 3.1% 5,038 0.5% 0.2
2028 973,295 294 0% 11,267 1.2%
2027 973,001 1 0% 724 0.1%
2026 273,000 0 0% (5592) 08% -
2025 973,000 0 0% (10,582) -1.1% -
YTD 973,000 0 0% - - -
2024 973,000 0 0% - - -
2023 973,000 0 0% - - -
2022 973,000 0 0% - - -
2021 973,000 0 0% - - -
2020 973,000 - - 973,000 100% -
2019 - - - - - -
2018 - - - - - -
2017 - - - - - -
2016 - - - - - -
2015 - - - - - -
2014 - - - - - -
2013 - - - - - -
© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 4/29/2025
119411 "" CoStar- 115 Page1s



Supply & Demand Trends

3 STAR SUPPLY & DEMAND

Inventory Net Absorption
Year SF SF Growth % Growth SF % of Inv Construction Ratio
2029 2221331 0 0% 9,115 0.4% 0]
2028 2221331 0 0% 17,225 0.8% 0]
2027 2221331 0 0% 5,884 0.3% 0]
2026 2221331 0 0% (7,183) -0.3% -
2025 2221331 0 0% 3,977 0.2%
YTD 2221331 0 0% 6,942 0.3%
2024 2221331 20,000 3.9% 101,077 4.6% 0.2
2023 2,201,331 0 0% 76,943 3.5% 0]
2022 2,201,331 0 0% (211.682) -9.6% -
2021 2,201,341 0 0% 78,084 35% 0
2020 2,201,331 50,000 2.3% (24,728) -11% -
2019 2,151,331 0 0% (86,513) -31% -
2018 2,151,331 0 0% 63,862 3.0% 0]
2017 2,151,331 0 0% 5,076 0.2% 0]
2016 2,151,331 0 0% 25,435 1.2% 0]
2015 2,151,331 0 0% (14,683) -0.7% -
2014 2,151,331 0 0% (31,244) -1.5% -
2013 2,151,331 0 0% 1,118 0.1% 0]
1 &2 STAR SUPPLY & DEMAND
Inventory Net Absorption
Year SF SF Growth % Growth SF % of Inv Construction Ratio
2029 803,250 (6,481) -0.8% (6,182) -0.8% -
2028 808,711 (6,441) -0.8% (809) -01% -
2027 816,152 (6,463) -0.8% (3,243) -04% -
2026 822,615 (6,402) -0.8% (8,573) -1.0% -
2025 828,017 (3.108) -0.4% (8.610) -1.0% -
YTD 832,123 0 0% 1,750 0.2% 0]
2024 832,123 0 0% 1,696 0.2% 0]
2023 832,123 0 0% (1,805) -02% -
2022 832,123 (1,200) -0.1% 2,770 0.3% -
2021 833,323 0 0% (2,450) -0.3% -
2020 833,323 7,796 3.9% 10,430 1.3% 0.7
2019 825,527 5,264 0.6% (8173) -0.7% -
2018 820,263 0 0% 8,800 1.1% 0]
2017 820,263 0 0% (8,398) -11% -
2016 820,263 0 0% 12,825 1.6% 0]
2015 820,263 (30,0G0) -3.5% (468) -01% -
2014 850,263 0 0% (22,160) -2.6% -
2013 850,263 (5,000) -0.6% 13,982 1.6% -
© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 4/29/2025
119411 "" CoStar- 118 Page14



Rent & Vacancy

OVERALL RENT & VACANCY

Market Asking Rent Vacancy
Year “ Per SF Index % Growth Vs Hist Peak SF Percent Ppts Chg
2029 . $30 . 142 3.4% 7.7% 183,853 4.6% | -0.3%
2028 $22.01 | 137 3.3% 4.1% 197,071 4.9% | -0.8%
2027 $28.08 | 133 2.4% 0.8% 230,797 5.8% | -0.2%
2026 $27.43 | 130 0% -1.6% 240,547 6.0% 0.4%
2025 $27.42 130 -1.6% -1.6% 225,447 5.6% 3.3%
YTD $27.86 132 1.1% 0% 204,583 51% -0.2%
2024 $27.87 | 132 1.5% 0% 213,275 5.3% | -2.1%
2023 $27.46 | 130 1.2% -1.5% 296,248 7.4% | -1.9%
2022 $27.14 . 129 2.7% -2.8% 371,586 9.3% | 5.2%
2021 $26.43 | 125 3.7% -52% 163,894 4.1% | -1.9%
2020 $25.48 | 121 -0.4% -8.6% 239,528 6.0% | 0.4%
2019 $25.58 | 121 4.0% -82% 167,456 5.6% | 2.4%
2018 $24.860 | 117 7.8% -11.7% 94,770 3.2% | -2.4%
2017 $22.79 | 108 -2.7% -18.2% 167,532 5.6% | 3.1%
2016 $23.43 | 111 21% -15.9% 163,710 5.5% | -1.3%
2015 $22.96 | 109 8.3% -17.6% 201,990 6.8% | -0.4%
2014 $21.20 | 100 3.9% -23.9% 216,871 7.2% | 1.8%
2013 . $20.41 a7 0.6% -26.8% 163,467 5.4% -0.7%

4 & 5 STAR RENT & VACANCY

Market Asking Rent Vacancy
Year “ Per SF Index % Growth Vs Hist Peak SF Percent Ppts Chg
2029 . $33.60 . 125 2.8% -4.7% 492 0.1% | -0.4%
2028 $32.66 | 122 2.7% -74% 4,473 0.5% | -1.1%
2027 $31.79 | 118 1.8% -9.8% 15,451 1.6% | -0.1%
2026 $31.21 116 -0.4% -11.5% 16,174 1.7% 0.6%
2025 $31.35 117 -1.9% -11.1% ‘ 10,582 1.1% 1.1%
YTD $31.93 119 -1.2% -9.4% 0 0% 0%
2024 $31.95 | 119 -2.4% -9.4% 0 0% | 0%
2023 $32.75 | 122 -1.7% -7 1% 0 0% | 0%
2022 $33.31 | 124 -5.5% -55% 0 0% | 0%
2021 $35.25 | 13 2.3% 0% 0 0% | 0%
2020 $34.45 | 128 -2.3% -2.3% 0 0% | -
2019 $35.26 | 13 10.5% 0% 0 - | -
2018 $31.92 | 119 6.3% -9.5% 0 - -
2017 $30.03 | 112 -2.5% -14.8% 0 - -
2016 $30.79 | 115 1.1% -12.7% 0 - -
2015 $30.45 | 113 7.1% -13.6% 0 - -
2014 $28.43 | 106 8.7% -19.4% 0 - -
2013 . $26.85 99 2.3% -24.4% 0 - -

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - 472912025

d
119411 "‘[: CoStar- 117 Page1s



Rent & Vacancy

3 STAR RENT & VACANCY

Market Asking Rent Vacancy
Year “ Per SF Index % Growth Vs Hist Peak SF Percent Ppts Chg
2029 . $29.56 . 147 3.5% 7.9% 176,131 7.9% | -0.4%
2028 $28.55 | 142 3.4% 4.2% 185,246 8.3% | -0.8%
2027 $27.62 | 137 2.5% 0.8% 202,471 9.1% | -0.3%
2026 $26.95 | 134 0.1% -1.6% 208,455 9.4% 3.3%
2025 $26.93 134 -1.7% -1.7% 201,292 9.1% -0.2%
YTD $27.37 136 21% -01% 198,325 8.9% -0.3%
2024 $27.40 | 136 3.4% 0% 205,267 9.2% | -3.8%
2023 $26.49 | 132 2.2% -33% 286,344 13.0% | -3.5%
2022 $25.92 . 129 4.1% -54% 363,287 16.5% | 9.6%
oo+ s34 61 124 5 5o Py 151625 R - 35% .................
2020 $23.61 | 117 1.0% -13.8% 229,709 10.4% | 3.2%
2019 $23.37 | 116 0.3% -14.7% 154,983 7.2% | 31%
2018 $23.30 | 116 11.7% -15.0% 88,470 4.1% | -3.0%
2017 $20.85 | 104 -4.2% -23.9% 152,332 7.1% | -0.2%
2016 $21.76 | 108 1.3% -20.6% 157,408 7.3% | -1.2%
2015 $21.48 | 107 9.3% -21.6% 182,863 8.5% | 0.7%
2014 $19.66 | 98 1.1% -28.3% 168,210 7.8% | 1.5%
2013 . $19.44 a7 0.2% -29.0% 136,966 6.4% -0.1%
1 & 2 STAR RENT & VACANCY
Market Asking Rent Vacancy

Year “ Per SF Index % Growth Vs Hist Peak SF Percent Ppts Chg
2029 . $26.99 . 159 4.0% 10.8% 7,230 0.9% | 0%
2028 $25.95 | 153 3.9% 6.6% 7,352 0.9% | -0.7%
2027 $24.99 | 147 2.8% 2.6% 12,875 1.6% | -0.4%
2026 $24.28 . 143 0.6% -0.3% 15,218 1.9% 0.3%
2025 $24.14 142 -0.9% -0.9% ‘ 13,573 1.6% 0.7%
YTD $24 .40 144 1.8% 0.2% 6,258 0.8% -0.2%
2024 $24.35 | 143 21% 0% 8,008 1.0% | -0.2%
2023 $23.86 | 141 2.8% -2.0% 9,804 1.2% | 3.2%
2022 $23.20 | 137 14.8% -4.7% 8,299 1.0% | -0.5%
2021 $20.19 | 119 1.0% -17.1% 12,269 1.5% | 3.3%
2020 $19.98 | 118 -0.9% -18.0% 9,819 1.2% | -0.3%
2019 $20.16 | 119 3.4% -17.2% 12,473 1.5% | 0.7%
2018 $19.50 | 115 -0.1% -19.9% 6,300 0.8% | -1.1%
2017 $12.51 | 115 1.0% -19.9% 15,200 1.9% | 1.1%
2016 $12.31 | 114 6.4% -20.7% 6,302 0.8% | -1.6%
2015 $18.15 | 107 7.7% -25.5% 19,127 2.3% | -3.4%
2014 $16.85 | 99 7.3% -30.8% 48,661 57% | 2.6%
2013 . $15.70 93 -1.5% -35.5% 26,501 3.1% -2.2%

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "" CoStar- 118 Page1s



Sale Trends

OVERALL SALES

Completed Transactions (1) Market Pricing Trends (2)
Year Deals Volume Turnover Avg Price Avg Price/SF Avg Cap Rate . Price/SF Price Index  Cap Rate
2029 - - - - - $303.71 . 208 7.1%
2028 - - - - - $281.57 . 193 7.4%
2027 - - - - - - $261.64 . 180 7.8%
2026 - - - - - - $24592 189 7.9%
2025 - - - - - _ - $241.57 . 166 _ B.1%
YTD 2 $3.3M 0.3% $1,672,500 $247.01 - $248.51 170 8.0%
2024 4 $5.6M 0.7% | $1,410,781 $193.02 - $248.61 . 171 8.0%
2023 1 $600K 0.1% | $600.000 $24¢ - $268.57 . 184 7.5%
2022 9 $63.5M 8.8% $10,581,812 $178.49 - $297.07 204 6.8%
2021 7 $46.9M 8.3% | $6,608.800 $141.41 - $301.69 . 207 8.4%
2020 7 $16.6M 4.1% | $3,320.204 $113.4¢9 - $294.05 . 202 8.6%
2019 4 $74M 18.8% | $24 679,198 $134.25 - $273.32 . 188 6.8%
2018 5 $34.6M 5.1% | $8,657.500 $228.85 8.0% $259.12 . 178 8.7%
2017 5 $5.5M 1.0% | $1,362,500 $198.33 7.2% $250.51 . 172 6.5%
2016 3 $23.3M 5.7% | $7.782.667 $137.16 B.4% $249.46 . 171 8.2%
2015 7 $93.3M 27.5% | $13,328,93¢9 $114.2¢ 7.0% $241.186 . 185 8.2%
2014 5 $2.6M 0.7% | $853.333 $131.45 - $208.95 . 143 8.4%

(1) Completed transaction data is based on actual arms-length sales transactions and levels are dependent on the mix of what happened to seil in the period.

(2) Market price trends data is based on the estimated price movement of all properties in the market, informed by actual transactions that have cccurred. The price index is not
smoothed.

3 STAR SALES

Completed Transactions (1) Market Pricing Trends (2)
Year Deals Volume Turnover Avg Price Avg Pricel/SF Avg Cap Rate . Price/SF Price Index  Cap Rate
2029 - - - - - - $243.42 188 7.4%
2028 - - - - - - $225.63 175 7.6%
2027 - - - - - - $209.5¢ 162 7.8%
2026 - - - - - - $196.97 152 B8.1%
2025 - - - - - - $193.38 150 8.3%
YTD - - - - - - $198.74 154 B8.2%
2024 2 $5M 1.2% $2,450,000 $191.27 - $197.86 153 B8.2%
2023 1 $6C0K 0.1% $600,000 $240 - $213.67 165 7.7%
2022 8 $63.4M 16.1% $12,870,574 $178.47 - $230.36 178 71%
2021 5 $44. 1M 14.5% $8,828,320 $138.64 - $222.21 172 6.8%
2020 3 $14.9M 6.9% $7,427 283 $110.91 - $215.97 167 7.0%
2019 3 $74M 25.6% $24,679,198 $134.25 - $199.62 155 7.2%
2018 1 $32.3M 6.4% $32,256,000 $233.70 8.0% $193.25 150 71%
2017 1 50 0.1% - - - $186.56 144 6.9%
20186 1 $21.4M 6.5% $21,400,000 $153.71 8.4% $193.43 150 6.5%
2015 6 $81.9M 37.5% $15,317,085 $113.83 7.0% $190.89 148 6.4%
2014 1 $1.6M 0.5% $1,550,000 $153.54 - $172.59 134 6.6%

{1) Completed transaction data is based on actual arms-iength sales transactions and levels are dependent on the mix of what happened to seil in the period.

(2) Market price trends data is based on the estimated price movement of all properiies in the market, informed by actual transactions that have occurred. The price index is not
smoothed.

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "" CoStar- 119 Page17



Sale Trends

1&2S5TAR SALES

Completed Transactions (1) Market Pricing Trends (2)
Year Deals Volume Turnover Avg Price Avg Price/SF Avg Cap Rate . Price/SF Price Index  Cap Rate
2029 ) - - . - - $205.40 194 7.8%
2028 ) - - . - - $189.77 179 8.0%
2027 ) - - . - - $17571 166 8.3%
2026 ) - - . - - $16466 156 8.5%
2025 - - - - - _ - $16109 152  BI%
YTD 2 $3.3M 168% | $1,672.500 $247.01 - $164.77 156 8.7%
2024 2 $663.1K 0.4% | $331,562 $207.29 - $165.48 156 8.6%
2023 ) - - - - - $178.36 169 8.1%
2022 1 $138K 0.1% $138,000 $189.04 . $193.56 183 7.3%
2021 2 $2.8M 16% | $1.375,000 $207.89 - $19513 184 5.8%
2020 4 $1.7M 16% | $582,152 $141.54 - $18568 176 7.0%
2019 1 $0 0.1% | - - - $17871 169 7.1%
2018 4 $2.4M 18% | $793.333 $178.65 - $169.91 161 7.1%
2017 4 $5.5M 34% | $1,362,500 $198.33 7.2% $166.91 158 5.9%
2016 2 $1.9M 38% | $974.000 $62.84 - $17073 161 5.5%
2015 1 $1.4M 12% | $1.400,000 $144.69 - $16379 155 5.5%
2014 4 $1M 13% | $505,000 $107.68 - $147.17 139 8.7%

(1) Completed transaction data is based on actual arms-length sales transactions and levels are dependent on the mix of what happened to seil in the period.
(2) Market price trends data is based on the estimated price movement of all properties in the market, informed by actual transactions that have cccurred. The price index is not
simoothed.

© 2025 CoStar Group - Licensed to Elite Commercial Property Appraisals - ". 472912025
119411 "" CoStar- 120 Pagets



SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTO ADDENDUM

Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street
Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:
City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

FRONT VIEW OF
SUBJECT PROPERTY

Appraised Date:
Appraised Value: $

REAR VIEW OF
SUBJECT PROPERTY

STREET SCENE

121




Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street
Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:

City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867
Lender: Reliant Valuations

Street Opposing View Address Verification

Entrance Elevator - Mechanical Room

Basement Pool/Rec Room Electrical and Fire Panels - Basement
122

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com PHTG



Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street

Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:
City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

(I : i I ..l|||||| il

Basement Computer Room Mens Room - 3 Stalls - Basmenet

Ladies Room - 2 Stalls - Basement Basement Entrance/Exit - Rear of Building

Hot Water Heater

Basement Storage 123
Proguced ushing AC! sofrware, 600,234 8727 weav.achveb.com PHTG




Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street
Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:

City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867
Lender: Reliant Valuations

Basement Heating System Front Entry Lobby Area - Elevator

Full Kitchen Full Ktichen - Split System

Main Function Room - 1st Floor (Doors Exit to Patio Area) Main Function Room - 1st Floor (Doors Exit to Patio Area)
124

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com PHTG




Borrower:

File No.:

49 Pleasant Street

Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street

Case No.:

City: Reading

State: MA

Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

Hallway - Storage Closets

2nd Floor Mens Room

2nd Floor Ladies Room

Small Reception Area/Office 2nd Floor

2nd Floor Room 1

Second Floor Offices

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com

125




Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street

Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:
City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

2nd Floor Room 2 2nd Floor Room 3

2nd Floor Room 3 - Alt. View Building Stairs

Attic Area - Air Handlers for 1st and 2nd Floors Attic Area - Air Handlers for 1st and 2nd Floors
126

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com PHTG



Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street

Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:
City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

|IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIiiI .

Attic Area - Air Handlers for 1st and 2nd Floors Aftic Area - Air Handlers for 1st and 2nd Floors

Attic Area - Air Handlers for 1st and 2nd Floors Street

Patio Area Front/Side
127

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com PHTG



Borrower:

File No.: 48 Pleasant Street

Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street

Case No.:

City: Reading

State: MA Zip: 01867

Lender: Reliant Valuations

Sid

Front

Front

Front/Opposing Side

]

Parking Lot

Opposing Side - Side Entrance Area

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com

128




Borrower: File No.: 48 Pleasant Street
Property Address: 49 Pleasant Street Case No.:

City: Reading State: MA Zip: 01867
Lender: Reliant Valuations

Parking Lot Rear/Opposing Side

Rear Basement Doors Corner Lot - Side Street

Rear/Side Generator Enclosure
129

Fronuced sl ACTsofrware, 600,234 8727 wwaw.achueb.com PHTG



3.2.2.10 — Minimum Age of Employee or Server
No employee of any licensed establishment who is serving, clearing or otherwise
handling alcoholic beverages shall be under the age of 18.

3.2.2.11 — Prohibition of Bringing Alcoholic Beverages onto the Premises
There shall be no alcoholic beverages brought onto the premises of a licensed
establishment, except as permitted by M.G.L. ¢.138.

3.2.2.12 — Deliveries

Deliveries to licensed establishments shall be made only during business hours and shall
be made in a manner so as not to disrupt neighbors or interfere with traffic or parking.

3.2.2.13 - List of Alternative Transportation
Licensees shall maintain a written list of the telephone numbers of local taxicab
companies next to the public telephone. If there is no public telephone, the list should be

available for patrons when requested.

3.2.2.14 — Hours of Operation

No licensee shall be permitted to sell alcohol outside the hours established herein:

Category

Hours of Permitted Sale

Section 12, Restaurant License

Monday through Saturday: 11:00 am. —12:00 a.m.

Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 12:00 a.m.

Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.

Section 12, Club License

Monday through Saturday: 8:00 a.m. — 2:00 a.m.
Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 1:00 a.m.

Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.

Section 12, War Veterans’ Club
License

Monday through Saturday: 8:00 a.m. — 2:00 a.m.

Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 1:00 a.m.

Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.

3-10 Select Board Policies

130



Section 12, General-On Premises | Monday through Saturday: 11:00 am. — 11:00 p.m.
License, including General On-
Premises, Instructional Classes Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 11:00 p.m.

License
Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.
Section 12, CCRC License Monday through Saturday: 11:00 am. —12:00 a.m.
Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 12:00 a.m.
Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.
Section 19B, 19C and 19E Monday through Saturday: 11:00 am. —12:00 a.m.

Farmer Series Pouring Permits
Sunday: 12:00 p.m. — 12:00 a.m.

Exceptions: No sale shall occur on Christmas day
or the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.

Section 15 License Monday through Saturday: 8:00 am. — 11:00 p.m.,
or 11:30 p.m. on days preceding fegal holidays.

Sunday: 10:00 am — 11:00 p.m., or 11:30 p.m. on
days preceding legal holidays.

Exceptions: No sales may be made: (1) On
Christmas day, (2) On Thanksgiving Day, and (3)
On the last Monday in May prior to 12:00 p.m.

3.2.3 — Additional Requirements for Section 12 Restaurant, Club, War Veterans’ Club,
General On-Premises, (General On-Premises Instructional Classes, and CCRC Licenses,

and Farmer Serics Pouring Permits

3.2.3.1 — Toilet Facilities Required

No premises shall be licensed unless toilet facilities meeting all requirements of the
current edition of the State Building Code and State Sanitary Code are available to the customers
of the license premises.

3-11 Select Board Policies
131



Town of Reading pas o) e
16 Lowell Street Wehsite: www.readingma.gov
Reading, MA 01867-2683

Dear Secretary Eng,

On behalf of the Reading Select Board, we write to express our strong opposition to the MBTA's
current proposal for the commuter rail turnback track location along Vine Street and Hancock Street,
adjacent to the Maillet, Sommes, and Morgan Conservation Area. After extensive public engagement,
testimony, and thorough deliberation, we do not believe this location is appropriate for the
proposed infrastructure.

The Select Board, Town Manager, and hundreds of residents have raised serious concerns regarding
the environmental, public health, and safety impacts of this project. The proposed site is immediately
adjacent to sensitive conservation land and densely populated residential neighborhoods. It
threatens to undermine a $5 million investment in wetlands restoration - funded through federal,
state, and local sources - including a $2.1 million MVP Action Grant from the Commonwealth.
Locating diesel locomotive operations next to this restored ecosystem is incompatible with the goals
of climate resilience and environmental stewardship.

We support the goals of the MBTA's Regional Rail Modernization Program and recognize the
importance of improving service frequency and reliability. However, the current proposal would
result in up to 7 hours of daily diesel idling, increased gate closures at key intersections, and
significant noise and air pollution - directly impacting schools, senior housing, and emergency
response times. These impacts are not hypothetical; they are real and measurable, and they
jeopardize the health and quality of life of our residents.

The Select Board unanimously voted to oppose the proposed turnback track location. We urge the
MBTA to reconsider alternative sites, including the existing Reading Depot or the 93/129
interchange, even if they require additional time and resources to desigh and construct. Alternatively,
the MBTA could resort back to pre-COVID 2019 scheduling. A solution that meets operational needs
while respecting community concerns is not only possible - it is necessary.

We appreciate your attention to this matter and respectfully request that the MBTA withdraw this
proposal and engage in a more collaborative, transparent planning process with the Town of
Reading.

Sincerely,
The Reading Select Board

SELECT BOARD OF READING

Christopher Haley, Chair Melissa Murphy, Vice Chair

Karen Rose-Gillis, Secretary Carlo Bacci, Member Karen Gately Herrick, Member

132



November 10, 2025 |Town Meeting
November 13, 2025 |Town Meeting
November 17, 2025 |Town Meeting
November 20, 2025 |Town Meeting

Pledge of Allegiance 7:00
Overview of Meeting

Public Comment (for any items not

included on the agenda) 7:05
Town Manager Report 7:15
Community Spotlight

Approve Annual Licenses

Discuss Town Manager Evaluation

Review 2026 Meeting Schedule

Select Board Liaison Reports

Future Agendas

Approve Meeting Minutes

Department Budget Presentations
Night One

7:00

7:05

715

T

.......................

Night Two

epartment Budget Presentations

7:00

7:05

715

133



Saelect Beard

Qotaber 16th, 2025, 7:00 PM

Town Hall Selest Board Meeting Room

Members Present: Chris Haley, Melissa Murphy, Karen Rose-Gillis {(Remote), Carlo Bacoi
Members Not Present; Karen Gately Herrick

Others Present: Town Manager Matt Kraunelis, Assistant Town Manager Jayne Wellman, Public Works
Director Chris Cole, Executive Assistant Joshua Delaune, Samantha Gray, Dan Higgins, Josh Mitchell,
Computer Technician Tim Johnson (Remote), Assistant Public Works Director Mike Kessman, RCTV
Studios, Bd Pacek, Taylor Gregory

This meeting was held in the Town Hall Select Board Room and Remiotely Via Zoom.

Chair Chris Haley called the mesting to order at 7:00 PM and provided a brief overview of the evening's
aganda.

Discuss and Vote on Trash and Recycling Contract
Chair Chris Haley took Roell Call Attendance.

Holl Call Attendance: Karen Rose-Gillis - Here, Carlo Bacci - Here, Meligsa Murphy - Here, Chris Haley -
Hare

Public Works Director Chris Cole explained that the presentation in the Board's packet included revised
pricing from both vendors, Waste Management and Republic Services. Waste Management added a bulk
item option and lowered the bulk item pricing to $30, and Republic Services added a pricing option for
weekly recycling. He also provided the Board with a few points to consider whien choosing the next
contrast mgarding service collection mathod differances, customer service, and budgetary considerations.

The Board focused on clarifying the cost comparisons between Republic Services and Waste Managament
and confirmed the numbers digplayed in Mr. Cole’s presentation weare accurate and agreed upon by both
parties. Town Manager Matt Kraunelis noted that weeldy racyeling is a warkable aption, but it would require
the use of free cash and stated his belief that the Town is able to handie bi-weekly recycling with the larger
hins availatile, Chris Cole noted that there are roughly 1,000 extra recycling bins in storage currently and
funids 1o purchase more would need to come aut of the general fund,

Carto Bacci said that he thinks biweskly is an adjustment but thinks it could work out.

Melissa Murphy expressed concern with taking away weskly recycling and a bulk item all at once and falt
strangly that weekly recyeling needed to be included in the Board's choice as she seeks to continue to
provide services to residents, not reduce them.

Karen Rose-Gillis explainad that she spoke with a variety of residents and that her findings revealed a split
of peaple wha valued the cheapest pricing and those who valued continuation of services.

134



Chris Maley agreed that he would not want to take away everything at ohce but said ite knows that times
are changing and pricing options provided by the vendors are within reason. He said that he is unsure of
whether to keep the weelkly recyciing or bulk item.

The Board discussed different options at length and agreed to cut the bulk item from their decision and
were split as to wanting weekly or biweekly recycting. Karen Rose-Gillis suggested that if there was a
possibility to start with waekly recycling and eventually go to bi-weekly to ease into the transition, that
could be a compromise. Both vendors agreed that they could factor this into their proposals.

In discussing the specifics of what each vendor’s contract included for trash hins and recycie bins, the
Roard was informed that when the RFP went out, the contracts were asked to be based on what the Town
had for a current count of bins used by residents, Republic Services said that their pricing was inclusive of
all current counts based on the RFP, Waste Managemeant said that there pricing was inclusive of one trash
bir and one recycling bin, and any other bins used per household were considered extra and would be
priced at $10 per month for weekly pickup and $6 per month for biweekly pickup for either type of bin. The
Board realized that if they chose te award Waste Management a contract, with this pricing clarified, there
would be a significant cost increase seeing as many homes have more than one trash and recycting bin.
The Board asked i Republic Services would be willing and able to reduce the cost of the burnable bulky
iterm and simall metal item. Republic Services responded that they were willing to lower the burnable butky
item price to $30 to match Waste Management and the smaitl metal item coutd be reduced to a cost of
$40. The Board expressed their appreciation to Republic Services for this reduction in pricing,

Town Manager Matt Kraunelis informed the Board that at the Finance Committee megting it was
determined that the Town will use $6.5 millior: in free cash to balance the budget and picking weekly
recycling would add to that number. The Board discussed the balancing act of being conscious of the
budget and the potential for an override in the future while trying to maintain the level of services provided
to the Town. The Board, through much discussion, agreed 1o start with weeakly recycling and see how a
potantial override determines if the Town wants to switch to biweekly recycling for the following years of
the contract.

The Board had agreed on a consensus of choosing weekly trash, weeldy recycling, no burnable bulky itemy
with Republic Services specifying the reduced bumabie bulky item cost at $20 and small metal item cost
at $40, and a 5% annuad increase to the contract.

Ag a Public Comment Taylor Gregory of Pleasant Street expressed that they agreed with starting at weekly
recyeling and transitioning into bhweekly with no preference on the service provider and thanked both the
Beard and Town Staff for all the hard work and their thoughtful approach to this process.

Karen Rose-Gillis moved to approve the Trash and Recycling Contract with Republic Services for a
term of 5 years as presented today for $2,286,279 with weekly trash, weekly recycling, no burnable
bulky item, no metal itern with a burnable bulk item at $30 and a small metat item at 540, and a 5%
increase per year, and authorize the Town Manager to execute said contract. The motion was.
seconded by Melissa Murphy and approved by avote of 4-0,

Roli Calt Vote: Karen Rose-Gillis - Yes, Melissa Murphy - Yes, Carlo Bacol - Yes, Chris Haley - Yes

135



Carlo Bacei moved to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Melissa Murphy and approved by a vote
of 4-0.

Aoll Call Vote: Karen Rose-Gillis - Yes, Carlo Bacci - Yes, Melissa Murphy - Yes, Chris Haley —Yes

The meeting adjourned at 9:19 pm.

136



Saelect Beard

Cctober 21%, 2025, 7:00 PM

Town Hall Selest Board Meeting Room

Members Present: Chris Haley, Melissa Murphy, Karen Rose-Gillis, Carlo Bacai, Karen Gately Herrick

Others Present: Town Manager Matt Kraunelis, Assistant Town Manager Jayne Wellman, Chief Assessor
Victor Santaniello, Community Development Birector Andrew MacNichol, Senior Planner - Ecanomic
Development Kevin McCarthy, Jason Carron, Abigail Bacci, Beatrice Barnard, Nancy Docktor, Gena
Pilvavsky, Joseph Carnahan, CFO Sharon Angstrom (Remote), Human Rescurces Director Sean Donahug
(Remote), Facitlities Disector los Hugging (Remote), Assistant Facilities Director Kevin Cabuzzi (Remote),
Computer Technician Tim Johnson (Remote), RCTV Studios (Remote), Angela Binda (Remote], Ed Ross
{Remoie}

Thiz meeting was held in the Town Halt Select Board Room and Remotely Via Zoom.

Vice Chair Melissa Murphy called the meeting 1o order at 7:00 PM and provided a bnef overview of the
eveaning's agenda.

Public Comment (For iterns not included an the & a

Mancy Docktor of Paarl Street expressed her feelings that meeting minutes to be voted on this evening
should include Mr. Bacel's commants from & previous meeting.

Gena Pilyavsky of Harriman Avenue stated that the Town Meeting Members of Precinet 7 are helding a
public meeting on Thursday October 30" in the Community Room at the Library to engage with the public
and Precinct 7 residents to get feedback and discuss upcoming Town Meeting articles.

Town Manager Matt Kraunelis noted that the Downtown Trick or Treat Event witl be on Octobar 28™ from
4:00 pim-5:30 pm and will be downtown and at Town Hall. He stated that on October 27" the Eastern
Gateway Commiunity Meeting will be at 6:00 pm at the Library and is an opportunity to get an update on
project plans and for public feedback. Also on October 27", there will be a Special Select Board meeting
starting at 7:00 pm taking place at the Reading Memorial High School Performing Arts Center ta hear
presentations from the Reading Turnback Committee and discuss the MBETA Turnback Track and
encouraged the entire Town to attend. Mr. Kraunelis also highlighted two other events happening on
Qctobar 28™ which include the Connected Reading Event to be held at the Library from 5:00 prm —7:00 pm
where the community is welcomed 1o rmeet Town departrmients and other orgardzations and the Bylaw
Committee’s Zoom Only Public Forum will be hosted regarding the Snow Showeling Bylaw Article starting
at 7:30 pm, He shared that members of Town Staff participated in a professional development team day,

137



and he thartked both MilA and Transformative Leadership Strategies for putting together a great day of
training. Lastly, he highlighted that the Town’s Veterans Day Celebration will take place or:November 11 at
11:00 am at Memorial Park and he encouraged the Public to attend and honor the Veterans.

Angela Binda of Orchard Park Driva asked for an update on the status of the Burbank contract and whan it
will be signed. Melissa Murphy encouraged Ms. Binda to reach out 1o Town staff to receive an update on
this.

Community Spotlight

Town Manager Matt Kraunetis highlighted the Town’s Public Health Nurse, Liv Bartolomei, for being a
valuable asset to both the Health Department and the Senior Citizens in Town. He stated that she is doing
an excellent job, and he has received lots of positive feedback regarding Liv's work and thanked her for
giving her all to the Town. He also highlightad Whitelam Books on their 8 anniversary in Reading. He
concluded by congratulating them and said he could not imagine Reading without them.

Karen Gately Herriok asked if there was an estimated opening time for Mattera Cabin. Assistant Town
Manager jayne Wellman said there is not an estimate right now and she plans to bring the Board an update
&% s00n as she can.

Chris Halay commendad Public Health Nurse Liv Bartolomei or her dedication to serving the pubtic and
thanked her for helping his family.

Amanda Haley of Tenrysaon Road expressed har gratitude to Public Heatth Murse Liv Bartolomei as well
and noted that Liv was very heipful to her in a time of sickness and thanked her for her incredible work and
for going above and beyond.

Due to the appearance of a conflict, Chris Haley and Carlo Bacci recused themselves from discussion on
this agenda item. Chief Assessor Victor Santaniello presentaed information to the Board about the Fiscal
Year 2026 Tax Classification. He coverad topics including what actions are required by the Board, details
on the Tax Rates, Senior Circuit Breaker details, and noted that with the FY 2026 debt exclusion being zero,
this adds zero to the Residential Tax Rate, average single-family home, and average cormmercial property
rate. He noted that FY 26 assurnes the same 1.11 shift interval from FY 25 for commercial tax rates. Mr.
Santanielio also provided examples from Reading’s neighboring communities for rate comparisons and
discussed residential and commercial exemptions. Karen Rose-Gillis thanked Victor for meeting with her
and providing an explanation on this info.

Karen Gately Herrick exprassed concern with the senior circuit breaker as it shifts to residential taxpayers.
She expressed that she is happy to be able to provide this for seriors but wished it helped a greater
number of them. Victor explained that this shift must be on residentiat payers and cannot be on
commercial. Ms, Herrick and Mr. Santaniello agreed that lots of seniors could bensfit and may not be
applying for it. Victor stated that the Assessors Office puts in great effort to make more seniors aware of
thig circuit breaker to help them.

135



Melissa Murphy stated that the Board needs to be cautious of the residential and commercial split and that
she is mindful of not wanting to averburden small businesses.

in speaking as a member of the Public, Carlo Bacci stated that it is difficult climate for businesses and as a
resident advocate, he feels there should be no further shift for the commercial tax rate given the raise in the
median value.

in speaking as a mamber of the Public, Chris Haley noted that small busingsses would greatly benefit from
the small commercial exemption, yet it is not realistic due to the current gualifications. He also stated a
few years prior, to advecate for smiall businesses, Mr. Haley reached out to State Officials such as Senater
Jason L.ewis, and Representatives Richard Haggerty and Bradley Jones, Mr. Haley then stated that the Joint
Cornmittes on Revenue will hold 2 Public Hearing on November 7% regarding this exemption and Mr. Haley
stated his belief that this would help many communities, including Reading, it passed.

Angela Binda of Orchard Park Drive expressed concernwith the commercial tax projection geing down if
there is no shift. She continued to state her suggestion of adjusting the rates to have a rise in commercial
property taxes to halance the increass of residential and commercial rates,

Town Manager Matt Kraunelis stated that after the Subsequent Town Meeting Warrant was closed, he
discovered that the legistation for the Senior Property Tax Exemption needed to be renewed as it expires at
the end of the fiscal year. In consulting with Mr. Santaniello, it was deemed cutting it too close to be put
forward in April Town Meeting and it will need to go 1o Town Mesting in November as part of this Special
Town Meeting Warrant. Mr, Kraunelis continued to say that while they had this Special Town Masting
Warrant open, at the Board’s recommendation, he added an article on establishing a Commission on
Disability instead of waiting until April Town Meeting. Lastly, Mr. Kraunelis explained that ancther article
was added to the Special Town Mesting Warrant in conjunation with Article 5 on the Subseguent Town
Meeting Warrant, this article is to reallocats funds to the Killam School Building Project.

Karen Rose~Gillis moved to close the Special Town Meeting Warrant consisting of 4 Articles to take
ptace on November 10, 2025. The motion was saconded by Karen Gately Herrick and approved by a
vote of 5-0.

Program Application for Local Actien

yae C.aommunities py B R

Community Development Director Andrew MacNichol explained that the purpose of this application is to
submit to the Executive Qffice of Housing and Livable Communities to approve the local requirement of
three affordable housing units at 258-262 Main Street and submigsion of this application will then allow
the process of putting regulatory agreaments in place. He noted that the units will be moritored annualky
ky the Town.

Karen Rose-@Gillis moved to support the Local Initiative Program Application for Local Action Units to
be submitted with the Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities by BLVD Reading, LLC

139



for a lot of {and at 258-262 Main Street, Reading, and to authorize the Town Manager to sign said
application and any other documents necessary to support BLYD's application for the Local Action
Units. The motion was seconded by Karen Gately Herrick and approved by a vote of 5-0.

Riscuss and Vote on Amendment to Select Board Communication Policy Section 1.4: Addition of

SOCIHL MEGIA a0 L FRONne >eCIioNs

Chair Chris Haley explained that the sectiong to be amended 1o the Board’s Communication Policy, put
forth tanight for discussion and a vote, have been reviewed and approved by Town Counsel. He noted that
these sections are not to infringe upon rights but more to act in the spirit of the Select Board vaiuing
people’s opimons and not sitencing them and to limit cell phone use in meetings to maintain a focused
ENVIronment.

Karen Rose-Gillis noted that while not a user of social media, she believes that there is a cornplexity of
regulating social media use and knows that there needs to be some sort of policy in place but questioned
the details. She also suggested the removal of Board members using Town Counsel from the social media
gection. Ms. Rose-Gillis referenced an email sent by a residant who brought up Board Membaers
contributing te or owning local rnews sites. (Sas Appendix)

Carlo Bacci expressad that his interpretation of these added sections was in reference to campaigh pages
and not personal ones. Both Mr. Bacci and Ms. Rose-Gillis agreed that the distinction of public campaign
vs parsonai page in the social media section needs clarification.

Melissa Murphy noted that complexity is further raised dug 1o some current cases in the Supreme Court,
without rulings, that deal with elected officials or public officials posting public content on a private page
and it creates a gray area of public vs. private. Chair Haley emphasized that Beard Members do notlose
their personal rights as residents by being Select Board Members.

Karan Gately Herrick expressed no issues with the ceil phone policy addition and further stated that she
prefers to take notes on her cell phone and will centinue to use it in meetings for that purpose. She stated
that she feels that the social media addition needs to be further clarified. Both Ms. Rose-Gillis and Ms.
Gately Herrick agreed that Board members should refrain from discussing topics that go before the Board
on social media because it creates the possibility of violating Open Meeting Law,

Board Members agreed that they are comfortable with removing the use of Town Counsel from the
addition.

Angela Binda of Crehard Park Drive expressed concern that during this evening’s meeting, Chris Haley was
using his phone during the partion of the meeting where he recused himself from discussion on the Tax
Classification and was sitting as a member ¢f the public. She expressed further concern for this being a
violation of the rule that he wishes to enact and suggested that they do not approve these policy additions
tonight. Chris Haley responded in stating that he was acting i hig capacity as a resident at that time and
these policies do not restrict his rights.

140



Karen Rose-Gillis rnoved to amend Section 1.4 of the Select Baard policies by adopting & new
Section 1.4.3, entitied Social Media, with the removal of the last sentence of the policy. The motion
was seconded by Chris Haley and approved by a vote of 4-1, with Karen Gately Herrick opposed.

Karen Rose-Gillis moved to amend Section 1.4 of the Select Board policies by adopting a new
Section 1.4.4, entitled Cell Phone Use, as presented today. The metion was seconded by Chiris Haley
and approved by a vote of 5-0.

Review and Vote on Finance Committee’s Request to Receive a Free-Review of Town Financial
Policies from Financial Management Resource Bureau

Finance Committes Chair Joe Carnahan explained to the Board that like other communities, the Finance
Committes (FINCOM) has a variety of policies related to budget planning and capital expenclitures, which
have not been reviewed in a while. He addad that the State offers a free service to review thesa policies
with the FINCOM, and the Comimittee wants to take advantage of this. Mr. Carnahan cencluded with
gaving that the Select Board must make this request for FINCOM as Town Executives, The Board was in
support of FINCOM receiving this frea review.

Karen Rose-Gillis moved that the Board request a review of the town's financial policies from the
Division of Local Services' Financial Management Resource Bureaw, The motion was seconded by
Karen Gately Herrick and approved by a vote of 5-0.

Chris Haley and Carlo Bacci both stated that this agenda item had been brought up at a previous meeting
and the next step in the process would be for Town Manager Matt Kraunelis to work with Town Counsel to
create a license agreernent. Mr. Haley noted that he thinks this would be a way to generate revenus for the
Town and support bisinesses, He continued to say that he understands the Police Department’s concarns
and emphasized that enforcement will be the responsibility of the restaurant not the Police Department.

Town Manager Matt Kraurelis and Seniar Planner Kevin McCarthy noted that they spoke with Jason Carron,
awner of Post 1917, and he is amenable to the Friday and Saturday only valet parking. Mr. Kraunelis and
Mr. McCarthy also stated that, to their knowledge, no other restaurants in Reading have expressed interest
in having a valet parking license agreament,

Jason Carron of Post 1917 stated that he ohtained a lease with a private parking lot for the valet parking
spots, and his interast is to offer this as a services to his customers. He further noted that he does not want
1o put additional responsibilities on the Police Department and fully understands that parking enforcement
will be his responsibility,

Karen Gately Herrick highlighted the importance of the Police Department’s concerns regarding the valet
parking. She further stated that she sees worth in the valet parking if it generates significant revenue and
appreciates this ides from am entrepreneurial standpoint, Ms. Gately Herrick expressed concerns with this
iea becauss she does not want to overburden Town Staff.

141



Melissa Murphy expressed support for the valet parking and echoed the point that this witl not be a
respansibility of the Police Department to enforce. She further stated that she believes Past 1917's
customers will appreciate this, and she knows Town Staff has a lot on their plates so this may not be an
immediate priority. She also questioned how well the valet parking may work for other restaurants.

Chris Haley concluded the discussion with nating that this valet parking option will be available to anyone
who wants it, not just Post 1917. Karen Gately Herrick noted that she woutd like to see calculations on the
revenue this is expected to bring to the Town.

Karen Rose-Gillis moved that the Board instruct the Town Manager to explore a Friday-Saturday only
valet parking license agreement. The motion was seconded by Chris Maley and approved by a vote of
5-0.

Karan Rose-Gillis shared her community engagements including meeting with the Reading Food Pantry
where she learned that they received a grant from the Greater Boston Food Bank as well as noted the
Pantry’s current needs. She attended various meetings including the Affordable Housing Trustees, the Ad
Hoo Commemoration Establishment Commitiee, Town Forest Committes, and the Finance Committes,
and the Board of Assessors,

Karen Gately Herrick shared that she held two Office Hours at the Pleasant Street Center and thanked the
residents who attended. She followed up by noting that she will hald another Office Hour on November
10" at the Pleasant Street Center, She attended a Community Planning and Development Commission
{CEDC) meeting, met with the Select Board's designes for Reading Center for Active Living Comirnitiee
{RECAL) Mark Deckser ta bring him to see Wilmington's senior center facility, attended the Finance
Committee’s Financial Forum, attended the MBTA Abutters meeting and neted that she was there in her
capacity as a Select Board member to listen to public feedback, and attended MMA Fiscal Policy
Cornmittes meetings. Lastly, she noted that she corttinues her role as a Director of the Women Elected
Municipal Gfficials and the group will hold a mentoring session October 22,

Chris Haley attenided a School Committee meeting and noted the generous donation from Claudia
Milksen-Fanaras for the first installment in renovating the RMHS fitness room at the athletic center and
tharked her for her generosity. He also attended a Killarm School Building Committes meeting.

Carlo Bacci attended the CPDC meeting where discussion on the Primrose Schoot took place, and he
noted is excitement in working with Director for Equity and Social Justice Albert Pless to plan an lalian
American Heritage Month celebration next year. He also stated he will attend the Hal Croft movie
screening in November.

Melissa Murphy shared that the RCTV negotiations meetings are going well, and she is confident that thay
will come befors the Board shortly. She attended Conservation Commission meatings and Board of Health
mieeting where bath groups requested raw data be provided related to MBTA studies, attended a Schoot
Committes meeating, attended the Finance Committes’s Financial Forum, and extended her gratitude to
Ms. Mitksen-Fanaras for the genercug donation to the RMHS athietic center renovation and noted that

142



fitness center will be open to ali students of RMMS. Lastly, she shared that it the Select Board reom is
available at €:00 pm an November 4, she would like to host an office hour before the Board's meeting at
7:00 pm.

Future Agendas

The Board reviewed the agenda for the next meeting, including a vote on FY26 tax rates. Other future
agenda items include approval of annual liguor licenses and department budget presentations.

The Board discussed suggested edits to the September 9" draft meeting minutes and agreed to add the
direct guote as follows, “Mr. Haley thern asked Mr. Kraunelis “if he coufd text Karen (Gately Herrlek) and firg
out what her status is because she should be here at this meeting (Select Board) and not that one (MBTA
Abutters only). [t just seems inappropriate, but if you cowdd find out what her ETA s, She didn't tell me; she
only told you.” , in the Town Manager Report section. The Board agreed to add a sentence to give context
ragarding Karen Gately Herrick’s tate arrival time, nated in the reviewing charter changes saction of the
draft minutes that reads, “after attending the MBTA Turnback Track Abutters Meeting held at the Reading
Pubtic Library”

Karen Rose-Gillis moved te approve the meeting minutes of September &, 2025, as amended. The
motion was seconded by Karen Gately Herrick and approved by a vote of 5-0.

The Board discussed suggested edits to the Septermber 16" draft meeting minutes and added to the
section regarding the valet parking discussion that Carlo Bacei discussed the possibility of having Friday-
Saturday only valet parking. The Board added to the discussion regarding BCTV's License Agreement, the
following tanguage to add context for comments made by Mr. Bacci, “Select Board Member Bacei called a
rasident a "horrible person’ and used profanity after being once again accusad of an sthics violation”. The
Board also added languags to reflect comments made by Chiis Haley and Karen Gately Herrick wihen
discussing the draft meeting minutes of September 9 at the September 16™ meeting that reads as
follows, “Whern Mr. Haley said you were elacted to be a Select Board member, not an abutter, Mrs. Gately
Herrick replied that he was not elected to be a’King™. Karen Gately Herrick did not agree with putting this
language in, while other Board Members agreed on adding it.

Karen Rose-Gillis moved to approve the meeting minutes of Septermnber 16, 2025, as amended, The
motion was seconded by Melissa Murphy and approved by a vote of 41, with Karen Gately Herrick
opposed.

in discussing the draft meeting minutes of October 7%, Karen Rose-Gillis suggested adding language to
reflect Carle Bacci's public apology that he made regarding comments made at the September 16%
meeting. The Board added the following language, “Carlo Bacci made a public apology for disparaging
comirments at the previous meeting”. Karen Gately Herriek suggested to add the words “rmonth long” as
context to the section discussing her concern for issuing proclamations in the ltalian Heritage Month
Proclamation section of the draft minutes and the Board agreed on the addition.

143



Karen Rose-Gillis rnoved te approve the meeting minutes of QOctober 7, 2025, as amended. The
muotion was seconded by Chris Haley and approved by a vote of 5-0,

Karen Rose-Gillis moved to enter into executive session under Purpose 2 and Purpose 3 te conduct a
strategy session with respect to collective bargaining and collective bargaining with the Facilities
Union, as an open meating will have a detrimental effect on the bargaining positien of the Selact
Board, as declared by the Chair, to invite Town Manager Matt Kraunelis, Assistant Town Manager
Jayne Wellman, Human Resources Director $ean Donahue, Facilities Director Joe Huggins, and
Exacutive Assistant Maddie Baptiste into the executive session and to adjourn from executive
session and not return 1o open session. The motion was seconded by Chris Haley and approved by a
vote of 5-0.

Roll Call Vote: Carlo Bacci - Yes, Chris Haley - Yes, Karen Gately Merrick - Yes, Karen Rose-Gillis - Yes,
Melissa Murphy ~ Yes

144



Appendic Email referenced i Discuss and Vole on Amendrent (o Select Board Communication Policy Section £.4: Addition of Social Media and Cell Phone Sections

From: Carolyn Johnson

Tex Reading - Sedectboard

Subject; Select Board Communication Policies
Date: Monday, October 20, 2025 6:24:39 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Reading's emall system. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender’s amail address and know the content is safe.

This message needs your attention
» No employee in your company has ever replied to this person.
+ This is a personal email address.

Mark Safe Raport
Frepearat) by Mimscast

Diear Select Board Members,

When you're reviewing the updates to the Select Board's communication policies on
Tuesday 10/21, | encourage you to include something about Board members who own or
contribute to local news sites or blogs. These outlets, just like social media, are powerful
ways to shape public opinion and influence haw residents understand town issues.

If we truly value transparency, cpenness, and public participation, then it's important for
Board members who operate or contribuie to these publications to always be clear about
who's writing the content and who's making the editorial decisions. Residents deserve to
know when an elected official is behind the bylines or opinions they're reading.
Transparency is especially important when the publication includes commentary on town
issues, opinions about other committees or board members, or letters to the editor.

Without that kind of openness, even the appearance of bias or hidden influence can
undermine public trust, not just in individual members, but in the credibility of the Board as
a whole.

Thank you,

Carolyn Johnscn

Thorndike St.

145



